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Please note that business hours at each venue are in line with the nature of events

 
VENUES NSW
Level 3, 6B Figtree Drive
Sydney Olympic Park NSW 2127
Locked Bag 1422
Silverwater NSW 2128
Tel +61 2 9006 3730
Fax +61 2 9006 3884
www.venuesnsw.com 
 
ABN 26 283 293 435
Office Hours: 9:00am – 5:00pm, Mon to Fri.

 

 
HUNTER STADIUM
294 Turton Road
Broadmeadow NSW 2292
PO Box 83
New Lambton NSW 2305
Tel + 61 2 4903 3800
Fax + 61 2 4956 1624
www.hunterstadium.com

NEWCASTLE ENTERTAINMENT 
CENTRE AND SHOWGROUND
Showground, Brown Road
Broadmeadow NSW 2292
PO Box 280
Waratah NSW 2298
Tel + 61 2 4921 2100
Fax + 61 2 4921 2199
www.nec.net.au

PIRTEK STADIUM  
(FORMERLY PARRAMATTA STADIUM)

O’Connell Street
Parramatta NSW 2150
PO Box 2474
North Parramatta NSW 1750
Tel + 61 2 9683 5755
Fax + 61 2 9890 3345
www.pirtekstadium.com

WIN SPORTS AND 
ENTERTAINMENT CENTRES
Corner Crown & Harbour Streets
Wollongong NSW 2500
PO Box 3100
Wollongong NSW 2520
Tel + 61 2 4220 2800
Fax + 61 2 4220 2801
www.wsec.com.au
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The Hon Stuart Ayres MP 
Minister for Sport and Recreation 
GPO Box 5341 
SYDNEY NSW  2001 

 
 
 
 
Dear Minister 
 
Venues NSW 2013–2014 Annual Report 
 
Venues NSW is pleased to submit its 2013–14 Annual Report for your information and presentation to 
Parliament. 
 
The report has been produced in accordance with the Annual Reports (Statutory Bodies) Act 1984, the Public 
Finance and Audit Act 1983 and the Regulations under those Acts. 
 
Yours sincerely 
 
 
 
 
 
John Quayle      Janett Milligan 
Chair, Venues NSW     Executive Director, Venues NSW 
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YEAR IN REVIEW

CHAIR’S  
REPORT
Venues NSW has now been established for just 
over two years and we have continued to build 
and consolidate our operations. We have now 
had over 3.2 million people attend our venues 
during this time with 1.45 million of these in the 
last year alone.

There is no doubt that we are operating in 
a challenging environment where there is 
significant competition for content in both 
stadiums and entertainment centres. Our 
success remains in the ability of the venues 
to be multi-use and through attracting and 
retaining a range of high quality events. 

To this end, we have had a fantastic year with 
just one of the many highlights hosting the 
Special Olympics Opening Ceremony at Hunter 
Stadium with 2,000 athletes and an audience 
of over 20,000.  We continue to deliver both 
national and international Rugby League, 
Football and Rugby Union at our venues and 
were pleased to host a number of national 
Women’s and Youth football events this year. 
Pirtek Stadium received international exposure 
with the Western Sydney Wanderers’ outstanding 
Asian Champions League debut resulting in the 
hosting of four matches. Our Entertainment 
Centres hosted a range of international 
headliner acts and Australian artists concerts 
as well as shows, exhibitions and conferences.

A review of the 10 Year Business Plan was 
undertaken during the period which highlighted 
a number of challenges and opportunities. 
Although significant improvements in 
operational revenue and expenditure have 
been achieved, ageing infrastructure will 
require additional investment to maintain 
competitiveness in the marketplace. While 
attendances at our venues have remained fairly 
steady we are acutely aware of the competition 
from the lounge room experience and continue 
to work on ways of improving patrons’ venue 
experience particularly through technology 
and facility upgrades. With increasing central 
leadership of game placement and hiring 

arrangements with the sports’ governing bodies 
we will continue to see marquee matches 
moving to larger venues and need to be ready to 
mitigate any impact.

Venues NSW continues to explore options to 
unlock and realise the value of the land in 
our precincts to further support the venue 
operations and development as part of the 
longer term strategy. 

Looking forward to the year ahead, the $29 
million Pirtek Stadium upgrade works will 
commence and will deliver additional seating 
as well as improved facilities and experiences 
for patrons and hirers of the venue.  Hunter 
Stadium will undergo a major surface 
replacement in time for the beginning of the 
Jets A-League season and to host four matches 
of the AFC Asian Cup in January 2015. These 
works are a critical factor in maintaining 
utilisation of the assets and demonstrates 
the importance of government investment in 
infrastructure of this kind which continues to 
deliver economic and social benefits for their 
respective regions.

I would like to take this opportunity to 
congratulate Minister Ayres on the addition of 
Sport and Recreation to his portfolio during 
the period. I would further like to extend 
my thanks to my fellow Board Members and 
the Local Venues Councils for their ongoing 
contribution and maintaining our connection to 
the communities in which we operate.

Finally I would like to acknowledge our 
Executive Director, Janett Milligan, and her 
team of dedicated staff who continue to deliver 
on our business objectives and provide excellent 
service to their communities. 
 
 

John Quayle

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S 
REPORT 
This year we saw the best of the Venues NSW 
approach of distinctly local venues connected 
through one organisation. 

The three major sports venues each took on 
the unique character and circumstances of its 
community. 

Hunter Stadium in Newcastle continued to offer 
sports fans a consistent program of NRL and 
A-League during seasons where its tenants the 
Newcastle Knights and the Newcastle Jets dealt 
with uncertainty and ownership changes. The 
first class facilities of the Stadium were again 
used to showcase the Hunter and Australia to 
a broader audience as it hosted the opening 
ceremony of the Asia Pacific Special Olympics.

In Wollongong, the St George Illawarra Dragons 
were in the headlines as they announced they 
would play two fewer NRL home games at 
WIN Stadium. However, behind the headlines 
the Stadium hosted its busiest ever year of 
sport with games played over 40 event days. 
The venue became the home of local elite 
rugby league hosting the Illawarra Cutters. 
WIN Stadium also reminded the community 
of its football credentials as it provided an 
international standard home ground for the 
Wollongong Wolves and brought national and 
international football to Wollongong with an 
A-League trial match where Sydney FC took 
on the Newcastle Jets as well as Australia’s 
Matildas taking on China. 

At Pirtek Stadium in Parramatta, the local 
character of Western Sydney could be seen 
throughout the year as the Parramatta Eels  
had a resurgent season and the Western  
Sydney Wanderers drew crowds that echoed  
the multicultural face of Sydney.

The Newcastle Entertainment Centre and the 
WIN Entertainment Centre in Wollongong 
continued to bring national and international 
artists to regional audiences. However, 
included amongst the shows attracting 
the largest audiences were Starstruck in 
Newcastle and Southern Stars in Wollongong. 
These performances showcase the cream 
of performing arts students from local high 

schools. And for 47 weeks of the year a thriving 
Farmers Market in Newcastle brought local 
producers and local people together.

While each venue projected a distinctly local 
flavour, Venues NSW has supported them 
with a consolidated back office, common 
operational processes and a unified approach 
to procurement and contracting.  Results 
were improved during the year through the 
appointment of one ticketing provider for Hunter 
Stadium, Pirtek Stadium, WIN Entertainment 
Centre and WIN Stadium; through consistent 
branding across the organisation and the 
establishment of a network of grounds staff to 
share expertise and equipment.

While the venues themselves are the most 
identifiable part of Venues NSW, the organisation 
relies primarily on the quality and commitment 
of its staff. During the year David Hinkley 
celebrated 25 years of service at Pirtek Stadium 
having joined the grounds department in 1991. 
Three other members of staff completed over 15 
years’ service at their respective venues; Stuart 
Barnes and Michael Barsby at WIN Sports and 
Entertainment Centres and Pushpa Senaratne at 
Pirtek Stadium. 

In December 2013 we farewelled Peter Lanyon, 
the long-term Corporate Services Director at 
WIN Sports and Entertainment Centres. Peter 
had been at WIN Sports and Entertainment 
Centres from day one and the business has 
benefited over 15 years from his acumen and 
wise counsel.

The year ahead brings the spotlight on our 
venues through both international sport and 
some major capital works projects. However, we 
will not lose sight of the vital role we play week 
by week in the economic and social well-being 
of the local communities in which we operate.  

 

Janett Milligan
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HIGHLIGHTS
OVER 1.45 MILLION PEOPLE ATTENDED SPORTING, RECREATIONAL, 
CULTURAL AND OTHER EVENTS AT OUR VENUES. 

HUNTER STADIUM HOSTED THE 
OPENING CEREMONY OF THE 2014 
ASIA PACIFIC SPECIAL OLYMPICS 
WHICH ATTRACTED 20,000 PEOPLE.

PIRTEK FLUID SOLUTIONS APPOINTED AS THE FIRST EVER NAMING RIGHTS 
SPONSOR FOR PARRAMATTA STADIUM. THIS MULTI-YEAR PARTNERSHIP NOW 
SEES THE VENUE REFERRED TO AS PIRTEK STADIUM.

WIN STADIUM HOSTED THE 2014 
NRL CHARITY SHIELD GAME 
BETWEEN THE DRAGONS AND 
THE RABBITOHS, THE FIRST TIME 
THE MATCH HAD BEEN PLAYED 
OUTSIDE SYDNEY.

CROSS FIT AUSTRALIAN 
CHAMPIONSHIPS HELD AT WIN 
ENTERTAINMENT CENTRE WHICH 
BROUGHT 12,000 PEOPLE OVER 
THREE DAYS.

THE WESTERN SYDNEY 
WANDERERS PUT PIRTEK 
STADIUM ON THE INTERNATIONAL 
STAGE WITH 4 MATCHES IN THE 
ASIAN CHAMPIONS LEAGUE.

image needed

LONG-TERM PARTNERSHIPS 
CONTINUED WITH OUR ANCHOR 
SPORTING TENANTS AT OUR 
VENUES.

TICKETMASTER APPOINTED AS 
THE EXCLUSIVE PROVIDER OF 
TICKETING SERVICES FOR PIRTEK 
STADIUM, HUNTER STADIUM AND 
WIN SPORTS & ENTERTAINMENT 
CENTRES.

THE NEWCASTLE ENTERTAINMENT CENTRE INSTALLED A HIGH CAPACITY 
WIRELESS NETWORK THROUGHOUT THE VENUE.

WIN STADIUM AND PIRTEK 
STADIUM HOSTED THE 
AUSTRALIAN NATIONAL WOMEN’S 
FOOTBALL TEAM, THE MATILDAS, 
IN INTERNATIONAL MATCHES 
AGAINST CHINA.

CONTENTS   |   INDEX   | PAGE
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PIRTEK STADIUM (FORMERLY 
PARRAMATTA STADIUM)
Pirtek Stadium is a multi-purpose outdoor 
stadium located in Parramatta with a 
capacity of 20,700. The site was previously 
known as the Cumberland Oval and has 
been Parramatta’s major outdoor sports and 
recreation venue since 1847. The site was 
redeveloped and opened as the Parramatta 
Stadium in March 1986. A naming rights 
partnership was signed with Pirtek Fluid 
Solutions in October 2013 with the venue now 
known as Pirtek Stadium.

The stadium hosts a variety of sporting, 
entertainment, corporate, cultural and 
community events. The stadium surface is 
ideal for the high performance rectangular 
sporting codes of rugby league, rugby union 
and football.

The venue has a corporate function facility 
and parking facilities for over 360 cars which 
operates as a commercial car park during 
non-event days.

Pirtek Stadium is the home ground of the 
Parramatta Eels (NRL) and the Western 
Sydney Wanderers (A-League).

WIN SPORTS & 
ENTERTAINMENT CENTRES
The WIN Sports and Entertainment 
Centres includes WIN Stadium and the WIN 
Entertainment Centre in Wollongong.

WIN Stadium has a capacity of 23,000 and the 
field can accommodate international standard 
rugby league, rugby union and football.

The stadium currently has three grandstands: 
the Northern (opened in 2002), a Southern 
(opened in 1992) and a new Western 
grandstand (opened in 2012). The eastern hill 
provides uncovered grass seating areas with 
a capacity of 7,000. The Stadium also has a 
function centre that can accommodate social 
and business events for up to 700 people.

WIN Stadium is one of the home venues of the 
St George-Illawarra Dragons who play in the 
National Rugby League (NRL). Other users of 
the stadium include the Wollongong Wolves 
and Illawarra Steelers.

The WIN Entertainment Centre is a multi-
purpose arena. The main auditorium has 
a maximum capacity of 6,000 with flexible 
configurations that can host various events, 
including concerts, dinners, seminars, 
conferences, school formals and exhibitions. 

The WIN Entertainment Centre is the ‘home-
court’ for the Wollongong Hawks National 
Basketball League (NBL) team.

HUNTER STADIUM
Hunter Stadium is a multi-purpose outdoor 
stadium located in Newcastle, with a capacity 
of 33,000.

The stadium was built in 1970 and originally 
known as the International Sports Centre. 
The Eastern grandstand was developed 
in 2005 and the Western grandstand was 
redeveloped in 2011. The rectangular field 
can now accommodate international standard 
rugby league, rugby union and football.  
The stadium also has a function centre 
that can accommodate social and business 
events, from small events to groups of up  
to 700 people.

Hunter Stadium has been the long-term 
home of the region’s two flagship sporting 
franchises, the Newcastle Knights (NRL) and 
the Newcastle Jets (A-League). The stadium 
has been secured as a competition venue  
for the AFC Asian Cup 2015 and will host  
4 matches including a semi-final.

The sporting precinct around Hunter 
Stadium includes other sporting assets 
owned by Venues NSW and operated by 
sporting associations such as the Newcastle 
International Hockey Centre and the 
Newcastle Paceway.

NEWCASTLE ENTERTAINMENT 
CENTRE
The Newcastle Entertainment Centre is a 
multi-purpose arena located in the Newcastle 
Showgrounds in Newcastle. The facility was 
opened in June 1992. 

The Newcastle Entertainment Centre and 
Showgrounds are managed by AEG Ogden 
on behalf of Venues NSW. As part of the 
AEG Ogden Arena Network, the centre 
collaborates with other venues including 
Allphones Arena, Brisbane Entertainment 
Centre and Perth Arena in researching and 
attracting touring events.

The centre has flexible configurations and can 
host events for anywhere between 2,000 to 
6,500 people. The venue has a car park facility 
with 1,500 individual car spaces as well as a 
coach parking area.

The centre plays host to local, national and 
international acts as well as providing a venue 
for exhibitions, conferences, sporting events 
and functions. 

Newcastle Showground features a show ring 
with seating for 3,000 people. It is the home 
of the Newcastle Agricultural Show, the 
Newcastle City Farmers Market and is also 
used for a range of exhibitions, sales and 
shows.

YEAR IN REVIEW
WHO WE ARE:

THE MISSION OF VENUES 
NSW IS TO MANAGE 
GOVERNMENT OWNED 
LAND AND SPORTING 
AND ENTERTAINMENT 
INFRASTRUCTURE 
EFFECTIVELY AND 
EFFICIENTLY FOR THE 
BENEFIT OF THE PEOPLE 
OF NSW. THE ASSETS 
UNDER MANAGEMENT 
ARE VALUED AT OVER 
$275 MILLION AND ARE 
LOCATED IN SYDNEY, 
NEWCASTLE AND 
WOLLONGONG. 

OUR VENUES
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GLENN TURNER 
APPOINTED 2 MARCH 2012
CHAIR, HUNTER LOCAL VENUES COUNCIL

Glenn was the Chair of the former Hunter 
Region Sporting Venues Authority. He has 
experience as Chair and CEO in many  
industries including as Chair of Hunter  
Water and the Hunter Medical Research 
Institute Foundation.

BOARD MEETING ATTENDANCE 
There were 11 Board Meetings held during 
the period.

Member Board Meetings 
Attended

John Quayle 11

John Dorahy 6

Craig Gallagher 6

Janett Milligan 11

Jane Spring 9

Vicki Tiegs 8

Glenn Turner 7*

Scott Lennon -**

* Leave of Absence from April 2014-June 2014 
** Leave of Absence from July 2013 – March 2014 
 

CORPORATE 
GOVERNANCE
Venues NSW was established on 2 March 
2012, following amendments to the Sporting 
Venues Authorities Act 2008 (the Act), 
to consolidate the responsibilities and 
operations of three previously separate 
statutory authorities. Section 21 of the Act 
outlines the principal functions of Venues 
NSW, including maintenance of land, 
managing and establishing facilities for 
sporting, recreational or community activities 
and the provision of commercial and retail 
activities and facilities.

The functions of Venues NSW describe 
commercial activities as well as activities 
aimed at community access and well-being. 
Venues NSW seeks to strike a balance 
between commercial, community and service 
delivery objectives without compromising  
the need for commercial returns.

Venues NSW is governed by a Board, 
which receives advice on the needs of the 
communities it serves from three Local 
Venues Councils. The chair of each Local 
Venues Council also sits on the Board of 
Venues NSW.

The members of the Venues NSW Board 
during the period were:

JOHN QUAYLE 
APPOINTED 2 MARCH 2012
CHAIR, VENUES NSW BOARD

John is an experienced sports administrator 
with an extensive background in the club 
industry, sports and venue management.  
He was Chief Executive of the Australian and 
NSW Rugby League and General Manager of 
Venues and Precincts for the Sydney Olympic 
Games. He was a founding member of MI 
Associates and was a consultant for the 2004 
Athens Olympics, 2006 Asian Games and 2007 
Pan American Games.

JOHN DORAHY 
APPOINTED 2 MARCH 2012

John is a former rugby league player, 
coach and football manager. John studied 
accounting and business management, 
holding a senior management position for 
an international company in the payment 
solutions industries. He was elected as a 
Wollongong City Councillor in 2011 and sits  
on several boards.

CRAIG GALLAGHER 
APPOINTED 2 MARCH 2012
CHAIR, WESTERN SYDNEY LOCAL VENUES COUNCIL

Craig is the former chair of the Parramatta 
Stadium Trust. He was also a trustee of the 
State Sports Centre Trust for 15 years. Craig 
served on both trusts as Chair of the finance 
and audit committee for many years. Craig 
is a partner at Hunt & Hunt Lawyers North 
Ryde and practices in the property, estate 
planning, commercial law and commercial 
litigation areas and has acted for many clients 
within the Parramatta Local Council area 
for a period of almost 33 years. Craig is a 
long serving member of Epping Rotary and a 
Director of Bendigo Community Bank North 
Epping. He is also a Director of the Centre for 
Disability Studies at Sydney University. 

JANETT MILLIGAN 
APPOINTED 2 MARCH 2012

Janett has held senior executive positions 
in the NSW public sector for nearly 20 years 
both in specialist social policy areas and 
in large-scale operational roles in human 
services, and sport, recreation and culture. 
She has a Bachelor of Social Science (Hons),  
a Master of Business Administration and holds 
qualifications as a Company Director. Janett is 
the Executive Director of Venues NSW.

JANE SPRING 
APPOINTED 2 MARCH 2012

Jane is an experienced sports administrator 
with a Bachelor of Economics (Hons), 
a Bachelor of Law, a Masters in Public 
Administration and both Company Director 
and Company Secretarial Qualifications.  
Jane is a Member of the Western Sydney 
Local Health District Board and a former 
Fellow of Senate at Sydney University and 
former Member of the Wheelchair Sports 
Australia Board. She is also an Australian 
Sports Medal winner following her significant 
contribution working at the Sydney Organising 
Committee for the Olympic Games. In 2013 
Jane was appointed National Fellow of the 
Institute of Public Administration Australia.

VICKI TIEGS 
APPOINTED 2 MARCH 2012
CHAIR, ILLAWARRA LOCAL VENUES COUNCIL

Vicki was a member of the former 
Illawarra Venues Authority and Wollongong 
Sportsground Trust. She has held a number 
of positions in sport and tourism including 
being a Director and Life Member of Tourism 
Wollongong and Director of the Illawarra 
Academy of Sport. Vicki has also worked 
closely with a number of charities including the 
National Breast Cancer Foundation, Legacy, 
Farmhand and the Australian Red Cross.  
She is currently a partner in Waples Marketing 
Group, Bluejuice Events and the Grants and 
Funding Institute and is former media executive 
with a background in marketing.

THESE GOALS ARE:

GOAL 3
TO DRIVE ECONOMIC GROWTH IN 
REGIONAL NSW

GOAL 19
TO INVEST IN CRITICAL 
INFRASTRUCTURE

GOAL 24
TO MAKE IT EASIER FOR PEOPLE 
TO BE INVOLVED IN THEIR 
COMMUNITIES

GOAL 27
TO ENHANCE CULTURAL, 
CREATIVE, SPORTING AND 
RECREATIONAL OPPORTUNITIES

GOAL 32
TO INVOLVE THE COMMUNITY 
IN DECISION MAKING ON 
GOVERNMENT POLICY, SERVICES 
AND PROJECTS

Venues NSW is guided by four business 
objectives. 

UTILISATION OBJECTIVE
 » To maximise utilisation of the assets

SUSTAINABILITY OBJECTIVE
 » To improve financial performance

COMMUNITY OBJECTIVE
 » To deliver excellent services 

OPERATIONAL OBJECTIVE
 » To maintain and operate the assets well 
and to be a cohesive and collaborative 
organisation 

In delivering on its objectives, Venues NSW 
contributes to five key goals contained in the 
NSW Government’s ten year plan NSW 2021:  
A plan to make NSW number one. 

YEAR IN REVIEW

L-R Back Row - Glenn Turner, Janett Milligan, John Dorahy. Front Row - Vicki Tiegs, John Quayle, Jane Spring

MINISTER

VENUES NSW BOARD

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

HUNTER LOCAL VENUES COUNCIL

IILAWARRA LOCAL VENUES COUNCIL

WESTERN SYDNEY VENUES COUNCIL

HUNTER  
STADIUM

PIRTEK  
STADIUM

WIN SPORTS & 
ENTERTAINMENT 

CENTRES

NEWCASTLE 
ENTERTAINMENT  

CENTRE &  
SHOWGROUND

OFFICE OF COMMUNITIES
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PERFORMANCE
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 KEY TENANTS
Anchor tenants play a key part in the success 
of our venues and we are pleased to have 
agreements in place with the Newcastle 
Knights, Parramatta Eels and St George 
Illawarra Dragons. During 2013-14 there were 
28 NRL matches played at Hunter, Pirtek and 
WIN Stadiums to crowds of over 359,000 people.

With our success linked to the on field 
performance of teams, improved results and 
solid attendance figures saw increases in the 
Eels’ average home season crowds this year. 

Venues NSW is proud to play host to the 
Western Sydney Wanderers and Newcastle 
Jets in the A-League competition. During 
2013-14 there were 27 A-League matches 
and a Semi-Final played at Pirtek and Hunter 
Stadiums in front of over 345,000 people. 

While still relative newcomers to the 
A-League, the Western Sydney Wanderers’ 
success has become the envy of many as they 
tap into the power and support of multicultural 
Western Sydney. The crowds at Pirtek Stadium 
are reflective of the diversity of the supporter 
base and the community support of both the 
team and the venue. 

The Wollongong Hawks NBL Club played their 
14 home games at WIN Entertainment Centre 
making it through to the Semi-Finals against 
the Perth Wildcats.

INTERNATIONAL SPORT 
With international standard facilities, Venues 
NSW aims to deliver high quality international 
sporting events to the regions in which we 
operate.  A great example of this is Hunter 
Stadium being secured as a competition venue 
for the AFC Asian Cup in 2015 where it will  
host 4 matches including a semi-final.

In the past year both WIN Stadium and Pirtek 
Stadium hosted the FFA National Women’s 
team in a series which saw the Matildas take 
on China and demonstrated our commitment 
and support of women’s sport in our venues.  

In other international football the success of 
the Wanderers brought four Asian Champions 
League matches to Pirtek Stadium during 
the period with crowds of over 43,000 people 
putting the team and the venue on the 
International stage. 

Basketball and netball are well suited to 
our arenas and this year saw international 
sensations, the Harlem Globe Trotters perform 
at WIN and Newcastle Entertainment Centres, 
while WIN Entertainment Centre hosted a 
netball international test match between 
Australia and Malawi.

The Newcastle Entertainment Centre hosted 
the WBA international super-welterweight title 
between Anthony Mundine and Joshua Clottey.

OTHER SPORT
Newcastle International Hockey Centre 
hosted the U/18 and Men’s Open and Women’s 
Masters State Championships in 2013-14 along 
with the University Games.

The Newcastle Harness Racing Club has had a 
consistent year of meetings.

For the first time, WIN Stadium hosted all the 
Illawarra Finals in rectangular codes (Rugby 
League, Rugby Union and Football), with a total 
of 14,884 people attending. Other games hosted 
included the Steelers Junior Grades Rugby 
League matches, the Cutters NSW Rugby 
League Cup games, Sydney FC Y-League and 
W-League games and Australian Rugby Union 
Gold Youth Series games.

CONCERTS & 
PERFORMING ARTS
Our arenas continue to deliver a diverse 
program of concerts and events in both 
Newcastle and Wollongong. 

Concert highlights included both international 
and Australian artist such as Ricky Martin, 
Macklemore, Jessica Mauboy, the Wiggles and   
Jason Derulo.  Two of our most successful  
shows which were held at both venues were 
Disney on Ice and Mrs Brown’s Boys. 

Our venues were pleased to host the next 
generation of stars with the Starstruck 
event in Newcastle and Southern Stars event 
in Wollongong featuring school students 
performing to audiences of over 22,500 people.

Overall the entertainment centres staged 
concerts and shows to audiences of over 
180,000 throughout the period.

Hunter Stadium hosted the 2013 Asia Pacific 
Special Olympics Opening Ceremony in 
December 2013. The event, which saw over 
20,000 people in attendance, featured a 
spectacular fireworks display and an array of 
star studded performances showcasing the 
talents of Anthony Callea, Iva Davies, Marcia 
Hines, The McClymonts and Human Nature.  
This was a fitting start to the event and 
culminated in the parade of over 2,000 athletes 
from 32 countries. The staging and support 
for the event recognises the government’s 
commitment to a socially inclusive NSW, where 
people with a disability are afforded every 
opportunity to reach their full potential.

CONFERENCES, 
EXHIBITIONS & OTHER 
EVENTS 
In order to ensure maximum utilisation of our 
venues, the conference, exhibition and function 
market plays an important role.  

Events of this nature staged at WIN 
Entertainment Centre included the Illawarra 
Business Awards, The Illawarra Wedding Expo, 
Illawarra Business Chamber After Hours, 
The Wollongong Business and Retail Awards 
Dinner and the Illawarra Coal Conference. 

Major exhibitions in Newcastle included the 
Newcastle Home Show, the Craft Show, the 
Food & Wine Show and Health and Harmony 
events. The Caravan and Camping Expo in 
Newcastle was attended by more than 24,000 
people over five days and the Annual Newcastle 
Show welcomed 20,000 visitors over three 
days. The Annual Helicopter Ball in Newcastle 
remains a highlight of the event calendar. 

A thriving Newcastle Farmers’ Markets was 
held regularly at the Newcastle Showground 
with several markets also taking place at 
Hunter Stadium. 

 

PERFORMANCE
UTILISATION: 
MAXIMISE THE 
UTILISATION  
OF THE ASSETS

THE HIGHEST ATTENDED EVENT AT 
THE WIN ENTERTAINMENT CENTRE 
WAS THE 2014 SEASON OF DISNEY ON 
ICE WHICH PLAYED TO 16,638 PEOPLE.

EVENT ATTENDANCE

EVENTS
Attendances at our venues increased this year with more than 1.45 million people 
attending events at our sporting and entertainment venues.  The range of events 
continues to diversify at our venues and the table below provides an overview:

EVENT HIGHLIGHTS BY REGION
HUNTER
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 » Newcastle Knights 
(10 events)

 » Newcastle Jets  
(14 events)

 » Special Olympics 
Opening Ceremony

 » NRL Indigenous 
Festival – Knights v 
Goannas

 » NSW Waratahs v 
Otago Highlanders

 » World’s Biggest Car 
Boot Sale

 » Auditions for Big 
Brother and X Factor

 » Farmer’s Markets

 » A range of functions, 
conferences and 
community events

N
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C
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 » PBR Bull Riding

 » Newcastle Home Show

 » Craft Show

 » Food & Wine Show

 » Health & Harmony 
Expo

 » Monster Trucks

 » Harlem Globetrotters

 » Ricky Martin

 » Jessica Mauboy

 » X Factor Live

 » The Wiggles

 » Celtic Woman

 » Fitness Expo

 » Caravan and  
Camping Expo

 » Newcastle Show

 » Macklemore

 » QOTSA/NIN

 » Mrs Brown’s Boys

 » Justice Crew

 » Jason Derulo

 » Celtic Thunder

 » Starstruck

 » Disney on Ice

 » Farmers Markets  
(44 events)

ILLAWARRA

W
IN

  
EN
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R
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C
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E

 » Wollongong Hawks 
(15 events)

 » Disney on Ice

 » Mrs Brown’s Boys

 » Southern Stars

 » Australia Diamonds 
Netball Test

 » Hairspray

 » Leonard Cohen

 » Don McLean

 » Cyndi Lauper

 » The Seekers

 » Jason Alexander

 » Celtic Women

 » Celtic Thunder

 » The Hollies

 » The Wiggles

 » The Glenn Miller 
Orchestra

 » Cosentino

 » Pro Bullriding

 » 2014 Cross Fit 
Games – Australian 
Championships

 » Australian Judo 
Championships

 » Harlem Globetrotters

 » A wide variety of 
functions, conferences 
and conventions

W
IN

  
ST

A
D
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M

 » St George/ Illawarra 
Dragons (7 events)

 » NRL Charity Shield

 » South Coast Wolves  
(7 events)

 » Sydney FC Trial

 » Sydney FC Y-League 
and W-League games

 » Variety of Charity 
events

 » Variety of Functions

PARRAMATTA

P
IR

TE
K

  
ST

A
D

IU
M

 » Parramatta Eels  
(11 events)

 » Western Sydney 
Wanderers (18 events 
including Asian 

Champions League 
matches)

 » Community Fan Days 
& Sport Clinics

 » Metropolitan Catholic 

Schools Grand Final

 » Functions & 
Conferences

 » FFA Matildas v China

ATTENDANCE
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COMMERCIAL LEASES 
AND LICENCES
The precincts owned and managed by Venues 
NSW are diverse and include property 
leased or licensed commercially for retail, 
hospitality, players’ facilities, administration, 
car parking and other purposes. In 2013-14, 
20 commercial leases or licences provided  
$1 million in revenue.

WIN Sports and Entertainment Centres lease 
space to two food outlets and a licensed bar 
and restaurant. Hunter Stadium has a number 
of spaces, properties and land parcels leased 
including to the Newcastle Harness Racing 
Club, Newcastle Hockey Association, Planet 
Fitness, Newcastle Supa Putt, Go Karts Go, 
NSW Touch Association and other tenants. 

Pirtek Stadium leases the gymnasium and 
training facilities to the Parramatta NRL 
Club and part of the car park to the Catholic 
Education Office and Our Lady of Mercy 
College.

PERFORMANCE

TICKETMASTER JOINED VENUES 
NSW AS EXCLUSIVE TICKETING 
PARTNER AT HUNTER STADIUM, 
PIRTEK STADIUM AND WIN SPORTS 
& ENTERTAINMENT CENTRES

SUSTAINABILITY: 
SECURING THE 
ORGANISATION’S 
FINANCIAL FUTURE

PIRTEK BECAME THE INAUGURAL 

NAMING RIGHTS SPONSOR OF THE ICONIC 

PARRAMATTA SPORTING GROUND NOW 

KNOWN AS PIRTEK STADIUM

Venues NSW is a Public Trading Enterprise 
and is subject to the NSW Government’s 
Commercial Policy Framework. The 
framework ensures that government 
businesses operate with the disciplines and 
incentives typical of commercial practices.

For the year ended 30 June 2014, Venues 
NSW recorded a surplus before depreciation 
of $2.213 million. This included a loss on 
disposal of $0.057 million and grants of $1.350 
million. After adjusting for these factors, this 
represents a $1.7 million improvement in 
financial performance on day to day operations 
on a comparable basis to 2012-13.

Total assets of $307.564 million included 
$277.644 million in property, plant and 
equipment. A $3.356 million program of 
major and minor capital works was completed 
during the year.

The Venues NSW Board is working to improve 
financial performance, through more events, 
operational efficiencies and realising the 
commercial potential of the venues through 
sponsorship, advertising and the use of land 
and infrastructure.

With significant competition for content our 
venues need to be well positioned to compete 

for events against venues in NSW as well as 
in other States. The market expectation is for 
modern facilities providing better services at 
lower prices which is particularly challenging. 

Our attendances have remained steady with 
a slight increase to 1.458 million during 
the period. Attendances are however facing 
pressure from increased competition with the 
home viewer experience given the quality of 
broadcast and general economic factors in an 
industry reliant on discretionary consumer 
spending.

Priority has been given to contracting 
anchor tenants to the stadia and acquiring 
new content for stadia and entertainment 
centres. This increases the opportunity to 
commercialise the venues through avenues 
such as naming rights, advertising and supply 
rights which have begun during the period.

Securing financial sustainability in the long-
term remains a key issue. While significant 
progress has been made it is recognised 
that there are still further opportunities. 
The geographic location of the venues and 
current capacities means that there is limited 
opportunities to explore alternate business 
models or to achieve economies of scale in 
services that are largely labour based.

CATERING
Catering operations are a key service to venue 
hirers and an important source of revenue 
for Venues NSW representing 30% of event 
related revenue. The majority of catering 
revenue is generated on event days, however 
each venue also has function facilities which 
host a wide variety of business, community 
and social functions.

Large scale conferences, exhibitions and 
dinners continue to be an important part of the 
business in Newcastle and Wollongong held in 
both the multi-purpose Entertainment Centres 
and in the function centres.

TICKETING
Ticketmaster was successful in securing 
the exclusive ticketing rights to Pirtek 
Stadium, Hunter Stadium and WIN Sports and 
Entertainment Centres in December 2013 
for a period of 5 years. This agreement with 
Ticketmaster demonstrated the importance of 
being able to consolidate venue operations and 
has delivered improved financial returns and 
capital investment in Box Offices and turnstiles.

NAMING RIGHTS
A naming rights partnership agreement was 
negotiated with Pirtek Fluid Solutions in 
October 2013 with Parramatta Stadium now 
known as Pirtek Stadium.

Securing a naming rights partner for Hunter 
Stadium remains a priority. 

 

13,710

1,350

1,080

2,603

1,945

REVENUE
$,000

Event Revenue Functions, Catering, 
Sponsorship & AdvertsingCapital Grants

Investment Car Park, Leasing & Rentals

Personnel Services

Maintenance

Insurance

Event Costs

Other

Energy & Water

Depreciation

Fees for service

5,578

7,062

1,7321,477

9,981

1,091
357 1,121

EXPENSES
$,000
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ILLAWARRA LOCAL 
VENUES COUNCIL
Vicki Tiegs, Chair: “The activity undertaken by 
the Illawarra Local Venues Council this year 
has involved a range of stakeholder meetings 
with local organisations in the Illawarra in 
planning a more commercialised precinct for 
Venues NSW in the region while not losing 
sight of the important role the precinct plays 
for the community. The ability to deliver a 
sense of place, social and cultural experience 
has been a major focus for the Local Venues 
Council in advising the Board on future plans.” 

MEMBERS:
 » Arun Jagatramka (until March 2014)

 » Wayne Morris

 » Craig Osborne

 » Glenda Papac

WESTERN SYDNEY 
LOCAL VENUES COUNCIL
Craig Gallagher, Chair: “The year has been 
successful with the Wanderers continuing 
to bring strong crowds with great on-field 
performances and the Eels also drawing 
great support as they fought to be in the top 
eight. The Stadium upgrade continued in 
planning with extensive works to commence 
in November. The Council has continued 
to provide strong links with and input from 
the community which has proved very 
worthwhile.”

MEMBERS:
 » Mark Birkinshaw

 » Karen Grega

 » Ern Phang

 » (James) Jim Taggart

HUNTER LOCAL VENUES 
COUNCIL
Glenn Turner, Chair: “The Local Venues 
Council continued to act as a conduit for 
bringing potential hirers and matters 
affecting existing hirers to the attention of 
Venues NSW.”

MEMBERS
 » Martene Archer

 » Keith Lynch

 » (Edward) Leigh Maughan

 » Catherine Tate

Details of Council Members and Meetings can 
be seen at Appendix 16.

Venues NSW contributes to the communities 
of the Hunter, Western Sydney and the 
Illawarra by delivering a range of sporting 
and entertainment events that not only bring 
people together but that enhance economic 
wellbeing through flow-on effects to local 
employment, local businesses and the visitor 
economy. The Cross Fit Games returned to 
the WIN Entertainment Centre for three days 
in 2014 and demonstrated the broader impact 
of such events by contributing an estimated 
$3 million to the local economy.

We also make our venues available for a 
range of activities that support local causes 
and organisations. 

The esCarpade event, which raised an 
amazing $1.15m to help 6,000 Camp Quality 
children and their families throughout 
Australia, culminated at the WIN Sports and 
Entertainment Centres, as did the inaugural 
Run Wollongong event, which supported the 
Wollongong Children’s Hospital. 

Pirtek Stadium continues to provide access 
for community based coaching clinics with the 
Wanderers, Eels, Parramatta City Council and 
Macquarie Bank all utilising the training field 
for children’s sports clinics. WIN Stadium 
hosted the Cops for Convoy Oztag Tournament 
to benefit Camp Quality, and the Kids in Care 
Rugby League Knock-Out Tournament. 

The Variety Children’s Christmas Party in 
Newcastle and the Kidzwish Concert in 
Wollongong each entertained over 3,000 
guests.

Five hundred people raised over $20,000 for 
the House with No Steps at the Step Up event, 
running up and down the Grandstand Steps 
at WIN Stadium and 29 business leaders in 
Newcastle used Hunter Stadium for their CEO 
Sleepout to raise awareness and funds for 
homeless services.

ENGAGING WITH THE 
COMMUNITY
An important part of the governance of 
Venues NSW is our connection with the places 
in which we operate. Three Local Venues 
Councils provide advice to the Board on 
the needs of the local community and with 
feedback on plans and activities.

The Chair of each Local Venues Council 
is a member of the Venues NSW Board. 
Throughout the year Local Venues Councils 
were active in Western Sydney, the Hunter 
and the Illawarra Regions.

PERFORMANCE
COMMUNITY: 
ENGAGING WITH 
THE COMMUNITY 
AND DELIVERING 
GREAT SERVICE

THE 2014 CROSS FIT GAMES AT WIN 
ENTERTAINMENT CENTRE ATTRACTED 
OVER 600 ATHLETES AND WITH 11,208 
PEOPLE WATCHING OVER 3 DAYS 
CREATED OVER $3M IN REGIONAL 
ECONOMIC BENEFITS.

THROUGHOUT THE YEAR PIRTEK STADIUM HOSTED COMMUNITY FAN 

DAYS AND COACHING CLINICS FOR THE PARRAMATTA EELS AND THE 

WESTERN SYDNEY WANDERERS PROVIDING OPPORTUNITIES FOR THE 

NEXT GENERATION TO INTERACT WITH THEIR IDOLS
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CAPITAL WORKS 
PROGRAM
Capital works valued at $3.356 million were 
undertaken during the year including the 
completion of the WIN Stadium Southern 
Grandstand roof works. Planning for the 
Pirtek Stadium upgrade continued with the 
appointment of the architect for the project.

Minor capital works were completed across 
the venues and these projects were internally 
funded. At WIN Sports and Entertainment 
Centres works included air-conditioning 
replacement, Entertainment Centre façade 
upgrades and energy saving initiatives.

At the Newcastle Entertainment Centre works 
included electrical substation improvements, 
wireless network upgrade and vehicle 
replacement.

Pirtek Stadium works included CCTV 
expanded capability and turf restoration.

In the year ahead: 

 » Pirtek Stadium will undergo a major  
$29 million upgrade. 

 » A project for the renovation of the surface 
at Hunter Stadium will be undertaken with 
work to be completed in November 2014. 

 » Venues NSW will continue to seek funding 
to upgrade the WIN Entertainment Centre 
and create an Illawarra Convention and 
Entertainment Centre to transform the 
precinct and deliver a range of economic, 
social and cultural benefits. 

ONE ORGANISATION
During the period Venues NSW continued 
to strengthen the support of our venue 
operations with the creation of a Chief 
Operating Officer role and a number of other 
staff appointments finalised. Corporate 
services continued to be provided by the 
Office of Communities for transactional 
accounting, information technology, human 
resources and payroll services. The central 
office was relocated from the Sydney CBD 
into streamlined premises in Sydney Olympic 
Park.

The Venues NSW brand was developed as 
a hero brand for the organisation and its 
portfolio of venues. Recognition of the value 
of the individual venues’ existing branding as 

commercially important resulted in  
these being retained where appropriate.  
The branding for Pirtek Stadium changed 
during the period to reflect the commercial 
naming rights partnership.

A Local Venues Councils Forum was held in 
July 2013 bringing together Board Members, 
Local Venues Council members and senior 
staff. The forum provided an opportunity for 
information sharing, discussion on key issues 
and planning for each Local Venues Council.

In February 2014, the Board and management 
took part in a planning workshop to review 
and revise the 10 Year Business Plan with a 
particular focus on the next four year period. 
The workshop covered a range of issues and 
provided an opportunity for both strategic and 
operational review and planning.

An Industrial Award for staff engaged 
at Venues NSW facilities has been in 
the development stages to standardise 
employment arrangements across the 
business. 

From 1 July 2014, Venues NSW will move 
from the Department of Education and 
Communities to the Department of Premier 
and Cabinet as one of the related agencies to 
the newly created executive agency, The Office 
of Sport. Under these new arrangements, 
Venues NSW Staff will be employed by the 
Office of Sport. 

As part of the Event Access and Inclusion 
Project, the NSW Government hosted 
a forum in Newcastle in July 2013 for 
business leaders, key decision makers, 
event organisers and venue managers in 
the events and tourism sector. The goal was 
to ensure participants better understood 
why accessible events are important to both 
their organisation and the community, and 
in turn provide input into the NSW Event 
Access Action Plan. Venues NSW supported 
hosting the forum which was held at 
Hunter Stadium and provided expert advice 
with both the Executive Director and WIN 
Sports and Entertainment Centre General 
Manager delivering a session with a focus 
on accessible facilities, support services and 
arrangements at venues.

PERFORMANCE
OPERATIONAL: 
CARING FOR THE 
ASSETS AND 
WORKING AS ONE 
ORGANISATION

CAPITAL WORKS VALUED AT  
$3.356 MILLION WERE 
UNDERTAKEN DURING THE YEAR
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STATEMENT BY MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF MANAGEMENT
For the year ended 30 June 2014

VENUES NSW 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 30 June 2014

STATEMENT BY MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF MANAGEMENT

Pursuant to Section 41C(1B) of the Public Finance and Audit Act 1983, we declare on behalf of Venues NSW that:

(i) In our opinion the financial statements of the Authority for the year ended 30 June 2014 have been prepared in accordance 
with the applicable Australian Accounting Standards (which includes Australian Accounting Interpretations), the 
requirements of the Public Finance and Audit Act 1983, the Public Finance and Audit Regulation 2010 and the Treasurer’s 
Directions. 

(ii) The financial statements exhibit a true and fair view of the financial position as at 30 June 2014 and financial performance 
for the year then ended.

(iii) There are no circumstances which would render any particulars in the financial statements to be misleading or inaccurate. 

Chairperson Board Member

Date: Date:  19/9/2014 Date:  19/9/2014

VENUES NSW STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the year ended 30 June 2014

  2014 2014 2013 2013 
  Consolidated Parent Consolidated Parent

 Notes $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Expenses excluding losses

Operating expenses -

Personnel services 2(a) 5,578  5,578  5,485 5,485

Event related costs 2(b) 7,062  7,062  7,615 7,615

Other operating expenses 2(c) 5,778  5,778  6,503 6,503

Depreciation and amortisation 2(d) 9,981  9,981  10,592 10,592

TOTAL EXPENSES EXCLUDING LOSSES  28,399  28,399  30,195 30,195

 
Revenue

Event related revenue 3(a) 13,710  13,710  14,256 14,256

Investment revenue 3(b) 1,080  1,080  443 443

Capital grants and contributions 3(c) 1,350 1,350 20,000 20,000

Other revenue 3(d) 4,548  4,548  4,123 4,123

Total Revenue  20,688  20,688  38,822 38,822

 
Gain/(loss) on disposal 4 (57) (57) (361) (361)

Other gains/(losses) 5 - - (4,507) (4,507) 
      

Net result  (7,768) (7,768) 3,759 3,759

 
Other comprehensive income  -	 -	 -	 - 
      

Total other comprehensive income  - - - -

 
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME  (7,768) (7,768) 3,759 3,759

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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  2014 2014 2013 2013 
  Consolidated Parent Consolidated Parent

 Notes $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

ASSETS

Current Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 6 27,922 27,922 32,748 32,748

Receivables 7 1,882 1,907 1,481 1,506

Inventories 8 91 91 77 77

Total Current Assets  29,895 29,920 34,306 34,331

 
Non-Current Assets     

Property, plant and equipment  9 & 10 

- Land and buildings  266,137 266,137 271,641 271,641

- Plant and equipment  11,507 11,507 12,704 12,704

Total property, plant and equipment   277,644 277,644 284,345 284,345

Total Non-Current Assets   277,644 277,644 284,345 284,345

      

Total Assets  307,539 307,564 318,651 318,676

     

LIABILITIES     

Current Liabilities     

Payables 11 4,352 4,352 7,257 7,257

Provisions 12 781 781 756 756

Total Current Liabilities  5,133 5,133 8,013 8,013

     

Non-Current Liabilities     

Payables 11 3,078 3,078 3,467 3,467

Provisions 12 52 52 127 127

Total Non-Current Liabilities  3,130 3,130 3,594 3,594

 
Total Liabilities  8,263 8,263 11,607 11,607

 
Net Assets  299,276 299,301 307,044 307,069

 
EQUITY     

Accumulated funds  299,276 299,301 307,044 307,069

      

Total Equity  299,276 299,301 307,044 307,069

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.

VENUES NSW STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
As at 30 June 2014

VENUES NSW STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
For the year ended 30 June 2014

 2014 2013
 Consolidated Parent Consolidated Parent

 Accumulated Accumulated Accumulated Accumulated
 Funds Total Funds Total Funds Total Funds Total 
Notes $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Balance at 1 July 2013 307,044 307,044 307,069 307,069 303,285 303,285 303,310 303,310

         

Restated of equity at 1 July 2013 307,044 307,044 307,069 307,069 303,285 303,285 303,310 303,310

         

Net result for the period (7,768) (7,768) (7,768) (7,768) 3,759 3,759 3,759 3,759

 
Other comprehensive income; - - - - - - - -

         

Total other comprehensive income - - - - - - - -

         

Total comprehensive income for the period (7,768) (7,768) (7,768) (7,768) 3,759 3,759 3,759 3,759

Balance at 30 June 2014 299,276 299,276 299,301 299,301 307,044 307,044 307,069 307,069

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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  2014 2014 2013 2013 
  Consolidated Parent Consolidated Parent

 Notes $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

 
Payments

Operating expenses -

Personnel services  6,265 6,265 5,779 5,779

Event related payments  7,850 7,850 1,925 1,925

Other operating payments  6,603 6,603 15,379 15,379

Finance costs  - - 3 3

Total Payments  20,718 20,718 23,086 23,086

 
Receipts

Event related receipts  13,202 13,202 17,181 17,181

Interest received  1,080 1,080 443 443

Grants and contributions  1,200 1,200 20,000 20,000

Other  3,746 3,746 5,671 5,671

Total Receipts  19,228 19,228 43,295 43,295

 
NET CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 15 (1,490) (1,490) 20,209 20,209

 
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from sale of land and buildings,  
plant and equipment  20 20 16 16

Purchases of land and buildings, plant and equipment   (3,356) (3,356) (4,814) (4,814)

NET CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES  (3,336) (3,336) (4,798) (4,798)

 
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Repayment of borrowings and advances  - - (48) (48) 
      

NET CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES  - - (48) (48)

 
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH  (4,826) (4,826) 15,363 15,363

 
Opening cash and cash equivalents  32,748 32,748 17,385 17,385 
      

CLOSING CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 6 27,922 27,922 32,748 32,748

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.     

VENUES NSW STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
For the year ended 30 June 2014

VENUES NSW NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For the year ended 30 June 2014

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

(a) Reporting entity

Venues NSW is a NSW government statutory body. Venues NSW is a not-for-profit entity (as profit is not its principal objective).

In the process of preparing the consolidated financial statements for the economic entity, consisting of the controlling and controlled entities, 
all inter-entity transactions and balances have been eliminated.

These financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2014 have been authorised for issue by the Board on 19 September 2014.

(b) Basis of preparation

The Authority’s financial statements are general purpose financial statements which have been prepared in accordance with:

• applicable Australian Accounting Satandards (which include Australian Accounting Interpretations)

• the requirements of the Public Finance and Audit Act 1983 and Public Finance and Audit Regulation 2010 and 

• the financial reporting directions issued by the Treasurer.

Property, plant and equipment is measured at fair value. Other financial statement items are prepared in accordance with the historical cost 
convention.

Judgements, key assumptions and estimations management has made are disclosed in the relevant notes to the financial statements. 

All amounts are rounded to the nearest one thousand dollars and are expressed in Australian currency.

(c) Principles of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the assets, liabilities and results of entities controlled by Venues NSW (Parent Entity) as at 
30 June 2014. Parent entity consists of Pirtek Stadium, Win Sports and Entertainment Centres, Hunter Stadium and Newcastle Entertainment 
Centre and Showground. Venues NSW and its controlled entity (Newcastle International Sports Centre Club) together are referred to in these 
financial statements as consolidated entity. The effect of all transactions between entities in the consolidated entity are eliminated in full.

(d) Statement of compliance

The financial statements and notes comply with Australian Accounting Standards, which include Australian Accounting Interpretations. 

(e) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are recognised as expenses in the period in which they are incurred.

(f) Insurance

The Authority’s insurance activities are conducted through the NSW Treasury Managed Fund Scheme of self-insurance for Government 
agencies. The expense (premium) is determined by the Fund Manager based on past claim experience.

(g) Accounting for Goods and Services Tax (GST)

Income, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of GST, except that:

• the amount of GST incurred by the Authority as a purchaser that is not recoverable from the Australian Taxation Office is recognised as 
part of the cost of acquisition of an asset or as part of an item of expense and receivables and payables which are stated with the amount 
of GST included. 

Cash flows are included in the statement of cash flows on a gross basis. However, the GST components of cash flows arising from investing 
and financing activities which are recoverable from, or payable to the Australian Taxation Office are classified as operating cash flows.

(h) Income recognition

Event related revenue is derived from revenues that can be allocated to specific sporting events. Where venue hire agreements specify that 
the hirer should contribute to the variable costs of staging an event, the costs recovered are included in event related revenue. Additional 
comments regarding the accounting policies for the recognition of income are discussed below.

(i) Grants and contributions

Grants and contributions are generally recognised as income when the entity obtains control over the assets comprising the grant/
contribution. Control is normally obtained upon receipt of cash.

(ii) Investment revenue

Interest revenue is recognised using the effective interest method as set out in AASB 139 Financial Instruments: Recognition and 
Measurement. 
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT.) 

(i) Personnel services

Personnel services to the Authority are provided by the Office of Communities, Department of Education and Communities. The Authority 
does not directly employ staff and personnel services cost is recognised as it is incurred. A current liability (personnel services provisions) 
exists which includes provision of all employee related entitlements.

Annual leave is not expected to be settled wholly before twelve months after the end of the annual reporting period in which the employees 
render the related service. As such, it is required to be measured at present value in accordance with AASB 119 Employee Benefits (although 
short-cut methods are permitted). Actuarial advice obtained by Treasury has confirmed that the use of a nominal approach plus the annual 
leave on annual leave liability (using 7.9% of the nominal value of annual leave) can be used to approximate the present value of the annual 
leave liability. The Authority has assessed the actuarial advice based on the Authority’s circumstances and has determined that the effect of 
discounting is immaterial to annual leave.

Long service leave recognised in respect of employee benefits which are not expected to be settled within twelve months are measured at 
present value in accordance with AASB119 Employee Benefits. This is based on the application of certain factors (specified in NSW TC 14/04) 
to employees with five or more years of service, using the current rate of pay. Market yields on Government Bonds are used to discount such 
employee benefits.

(j) Assets

(i) Acquisition of assets

The cost method of accounting is used for the initial recording of all acquisitions of assets controlled by the Authority. Cost is the amount 
of cash or cash equivalents paid or the fair value of the other consideration given to acquire the asset at the time of its acquisition or 
construction or, where applicable, the amount attributed to that asset when initially recognised in accordance with the requirements of 
other Australian Accounting Standards.   

Assets acquired at no cost, or for nominal consideration, are initially recognised at their fair value at the date of acquisition.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset in an orderly transaction between market participants at measurement date.

Where payment for an asset is deferred beyond normal credit terms, its cost is the cash price equivalent, i.e. the deferred payment 
amount is effectively discounted at an asset-specific rate.

(ii) Capitalisation thresholds

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets costing $5,000 and above individually (or forming part of a network costing more 
than $5,000) are capitalised.

(iii) Revaluation of property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are valued in accordance with the ‘Valuation of Physical Non-Current Assets at Fair Value’ Policy and 
Guidelines Paper (TPP 14-01). This policy adopts fair value in accordance with AASB 13 Fair Value Measurement and AASB 116 Property, 
Plant and Equipment.

Property, plant and equipment is measured at the highest and best use by market participants that is physically possible, legally 
permissible and financially feasible. The highest and best use must be available at a period that is not remote and take into account 
the characteristics of the asset being measured, including any socio-political restrictions imposed by government. In most cases, after 
taking into account these considerations, the highest and best use is the existing use. In limited circumstances, the highest and best use 
may be a feasible alternative use, where there are no restrictions on use or where there is a feasible higher restricted alternative use.

Fair value of property, plant and equipment is based on a market participants’ perspective, using valuation techniques (market approach, 
cost approach, income approach) that maximise relevant observable inputs and minimise unobservable inputs. Also refer Note 9 and 
Note 10 for further information regarding fair value. 

The revaluation is performed on a rolling basis within the same asset class.

The Authority revalues each class of property, plant and equipment at least every five years or with sufficient regularity to ensure that 
the carrying amount of each asset in the class does not differ materially from its fair value at reporting date. The last revaluations were 
completed at Pirtek Stadium on 31 December 2010, at Hunter Stadium on 30 June 2011 and at WIN Sport and Entertainment Centres on 
30 April 2013.

During the year, the Authority undertook a desk top indexation of the values of all land and building assets. The indexation was done by 
Land and Property Information, a division of the then Department of Finance and Services, and dated 31 March 2014. No adjustments 
were made to the asset values as the overall indexation rate was immaterial.

When revaluing non-current assets using the cost approach, the gross amount and the related accumulated depreciation are separately 
restated.

VENUES NSW NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For the year ended 30 June 2014

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT.)

For other assets valued using other valuation techniques, any balances of accumulated depreciation at the revaluation date in respect 
of those assets are credited to the asset accounts to which they relate. The net asset accounts are then increased or decreased by the 
revaluation increments or decrements.

Revaluation increments are credited directly to revaluation surplus, except that, to the extent that an increment reverses a revaluation 
decrement in respect of that class of asset previously recognised as an expense in the net result, the increment is recognised 
immediately as revenue in the net result.

Revaluation decrements are recognised immediately as expenses in the net result, except that, to the extent that a credit balance exists 
in the revaluation surplus in respect of the same class of assets, they are debited directly to the asset revaluation surplus.

As a not-for-profit entity, revaluation increments and decrements are offset against one another within a class of non-current assets, but 
not otherwise.

Where an asset that has previously been revalued is disposed of, any balance remaining in the revaluation surplus in respect of that 
asset is transferred to accumulated funds.

(iv) Impairment of property, plant and equipment

As a not-for-profit entity with no cash generating units, impairment under AASB 136 Impairment of Assets is unlikely to arise. As 
property, plant and equipment is carried at fair value, impairment can only arise in the rare circumstances where the costs of disposal 
are material. Specifically, impairment is unlikely for not-for-profit entities given that AABS 136 modifies the recoverable amount test for 
non-cash generating assets of not-for-profit entities to the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and depreciated replacement cost, 
where depreciated replacement cost is also fair value. 

(v) Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

Depreciation is provided for on a straight-line basis for all depreciable assets so as to write off the depreciable amount of each asset as 
it is consumed over its useful life to the Authority. 

All material separately identifiable components of assets are depreciated over their useful lives.

The following useful lives have been determined for each class of assets, unchanged from previous years.

Average useful 
life years

Buildings and infrastructure 5-50
Plant and equipment 2-50
Computer 3
Sculptures 60

(vi) Maintenance

Day-to-day servicing costs or maintenance are charged as expenses as incurred, except where they relate to the replacement of a part or 
component of an asset, in which case the costs are capitalised and depreciated.

(vii) Leased assets

Operating lease payments are charged to the Statement of Comprehensive Income in the periods in which they are incurred.

(viii) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active 
market. These financial assets are recognised initially at fair value, usually based on the transaction cost or face value. Subsequent 
measurement is at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any allowance for an impairment of receivables. Any changes 
are recognised in the net result for the year when impaired, derecognised or through the amortisation process.

Short term receivables with no stated interest rate are measured at the original invoice amount where the effect of discounting is 
immaterial. 

(ix) Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course 
of business less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

VENUES NSW NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For the year ended 30 June 2014

CONTENTS   |   INDEX   | PAGE



VENUES NSW ANNUAL REPORT 2013-2014 Hunter Stadium | Newscastle Entertainment Centre & Showground | Pirtek Stadium | WIN Sports and Entertainment Centres38 39

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT.)

(x) Impairment of financial assets

All financial assets, except those measured at fair value through profit and loss, are subject to an annual review for impairment. An 
allowance for impairment is established when there is objective evidence that the Authority will not be able to collect all amounts due. 

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the allowance is the difference between the asset’s carrying amount 
and the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the effective interest rate. The amount of the impairment loss is 
recognised in the net result for the period. 

Any reversals of impairment losses are reversed through the net result for the period, where there is objective evidence. However 
reversals of impairment losses on an investment in an equity instrument classified as ‘available for sale’ must be made through the 
revaluation surplus. Reversals of impairment losses of financial assets carried at amortised cost cannot result in a carrying amount that 
exceeds what the carrying amount would have been had there not been an impairment loss.

(xi) De-recognition of financial assets and financial liabilities

A financial asset is derecognised when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial assets expire; or if the Authority 
transfers the financial asset:

• where substantially all the risks and rewards have been transferred; or

• where the Authority has not transferred substantially all the risks and   rewards, if the Authority has not retained control.

Where the Authority has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards or transferred control, the asset is 
recognised to the extent of the Authority’s continuing involvement in the asset.

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled or expires.

(xii) Restricted assets

Cash and cash equivalents include ticket sales collected in advance for upcoming events. The amounts are restricted and are 
quarantined from operating funds. They are subsequently paid to promoters and hirers as part of the event settlement process. 
Restricted assets also include the unspent amounts of the funding provided for the redevelopment of Pirtek Stadium and the turf 
restoration at Hunter Stadium.

(xiii) Other assets

Other assets are recognised on a cost basis.

(k) Liabilities 

 Payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Authority and other amounts. Payables are recognised initially at fair 
value, usually based on the transaction cost or face value. Subsequent measurement is at amortised cost using the effective interest method. 
Short-term payables with no stated interest rate are measured at the original invoice amount where the effect of discounting is immaterial.

(l) Fair value hierarchy

A number of the entity’s accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values, for both financial and non-financial 
assets. When measuring fair value, the valuation technique used maximises the use of relevant observable inputs and minimises the use of 
unobservable inputs. Under AASB 13, the entity categorises, for disclosure purposes, the valuation techniques based on the inputs used in 
the valuation techniques as follows:

• Level 1 – quoted prices in active markets for identical assets that the entity can access at the measurement date.

• Level 2 – inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable, either directly or indirectly.

• Level 3 – inputs that are not based on observable market data.  
(unobservable inputs)

The entity recognises transfers between level of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting period during which the change has 
occurred.

Refer Note 10 for further disclosures regarding fair value measurements of non-financial assets.

(m) Equity 

Accumulated Funds

The category ‘Accumulated Funds’ includes all current and prior retained funds.
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT.)

(n) Change in accounting policy, including new or revised Australian Accounting Standards

(i) Effective for the first time in 2013-14 

The accounting policies applied in 2013-14 are consistent with those of the previous financial year except as a result  
of the following new or revised Australian Accounting Standards that have been applied for the first time in 2013-14.  
The impact of these Standards in the period of initial application includes:

AASB 13 Fair Value Measurement (application date 1 Jul 2013); The Authority has reviewed the standard and has determined classification 
of Property, Plant and Equipment as Level 2 and 3 inputs. There is no financial impact and additional notes disclosures have been 
included as required in Note 10.

AASB 119 Employee Benefits (application date 1 Jul 2013); The Authority has reviewed and assessed the impact on measurement of 
annual leave liabilities. The impact of discounting on the Authority’s annual leave liability has been determined as immaterial to the 
liability.

(ii) Issued but not effective

At reporting date a number of accounting standards adopted by the AASB had been issued but are not yet operative. These new 
Standards/Interpretations have not been early adopted by the Authority. 

• AASB 9 Financial Instruments (Effective 1 July 2017)

• AASB 10 Consolidated Financial Statements (Effective 1 July 2014)

• AASB 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities (Effective 1 July 2014)

• AASB 127 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements (Effective 1 July 2014)

• AASB 1031 Materiality (Effective 1 July 2014)

• AASB 2010-7 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from AASB 9 (December 2010)  
(effective 1 July 2017)

• AASB 2011-7 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from the Consolidation and Joint Arrangements Standards 
(effective date 1 July 2014)

• AASB 2012-3 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Offsetting Financial Assets and Liabilities  
(effective date 1 July 2014)

• AASB 2012-6 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Mandatory Effective Date of AASB 9 and Transition Disclosures [AASB 9, 
AASB 2009-11, AASB 2010-7, AASB 2011-7 and AASB 2011-8] (effective date 1 July 2017)

• AASB 2013-3 Amendments to AASB 136 – Recoverable Amount Disclosures for Non-Financial Assets  
(effective date 1 July 2014)

• AASB 2013-9 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Conceptual Framework, Materiality and Financial Instruments [Part C 
Financial Instruments] (effective 1 July 2015) 

Management cannot determine the actual impact of these Standards in the Authority’s financial statements in the period of their initial 
application.

(o) Comparative information

Except when an Australian Accounting Standard permits or requires otherwise, comparative information is disclosed in respect of the 
previous period for all amounts reported in the financial statements.

Changes were made to previous period amounts to reflect more accurate mapping of transactions. The changes affected the Statement of 
Comprehensive Income and notes 2 (b), 2 (c), 3 (a) and 3 (d). However, the changes consisted of re-mapping within Expense and Revenue 
line items and did not change Total Expenses and Total Revenue. Note 2 (b) Event Related Costs increased by $672,000 and note 2 (c) Other 
Operating Expenses decreased by $672,000. Note 3 (a) Event Related Revenue increased by $1,250,000 and Note 3 (d) Other Revenue 
decreased by $1,250,000. 

(p) Income taxes

Venues NSW falls under the Tax Equivalent Regime (TER) for government businesses. As a result, the Authority is required to remit tax 
equivalents to the NSW Office of State Revenue based on accounting profits adjusted for certain transactions. Under the TER framework, the 
Authority is not required to apply AASB112 Income Taxes.

As an accounting loss was incurred, there is no tax liability.
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VENUES NSW NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For the year ended 30 June 2014

  2014 2014 2013 2013 
  Consolidated Parent Consolidated Parent 

  $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

2 Expenses Excluding Losses     

(a) Personnel services     

Salaries and wages  
(including recreation leave)   4,834   4,834  4,589  4,589 

Superannuation   378   378  344  344 

Long service leave (including on costs)  (17) (17) 113  113 

Workers’ compensation insurance   54   54  89  89

Payroll tax and fringe benefits tax   329   329  350  350

Total   5,578   5,578  5,485  5,485

 
(b) Event related costs     

Cost of sales   6,286   6,286  5,295  5,295

Contract staff   351   351  963  963 

Cleaning   323   323  631  631 

Other   102   102  726  726

Total   7,062   7,062  7,615  7,615 

 
(c) Other operating expenses include the following:    

Maintenance   1,477   1,477  1,489  1,489

Fees for services required   1,091   1,091  1,180  1,180 

Computer system expenses   165   165  128  128

Electricity and gas   1,320   1,320  1,296  1,296

Motor vehicle expenses   27   27  55  55

Postage and telephone   125   125  126  126

Insurance   357   357  383  383

Travel   48   48  41  41 

Legal   135   135  412  412

Security   62   62  66  66

Marketing/Advertising   62   62  100  100

Training   44   44  44  44

Printing and stationery   43   43  61  61

Audit of financial statements   100   100  117  117

Water charges   412   412  361  361

Other   310   310  644  644

Total   5,778   5,778   6,503   6,503

 
(d) Depreciation and amortisation expense    

Depreciation    

Buildings   8,682   8,682  8,992  8,992

Plant and equipment   1,299   1,299  1,600  1,600

Total    9,981   9,981   10,592   10,592
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  2014 2014 2013 2013 
  Consolidated Parent Consolidated Parent 

  $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

3  Revenue    

(a) Event related revenue    

Ticket revenue  961  961  984 984

Venue and ground hire  5,365  5,365  5191 5191

Cost recovered from hirer  3,449  3,449  2986 2986

Game day catering  3,912  3,912  4876 4876

Corporate facility rental  - - 208 208

Other  23  23  11 11

Total  13,710  13,710  14,256  14,256

 
(b) Investment revenue     

Interest revenue  1,080  1,080  443 443

 
(c) Grants and contributions    

Commonwealth Government  - - 20,000 20,000 

NSW State Government  1,200  1,200 - -

Other  150  150 - -

  1,350 1,350 20,000 20,000

The $20m is Commonwealth funding for the Pirtek Stadium upgrade.   

 
(d) Other revenue    

Advertising  131  131  343 343

Leasing and rentals  945  945  761 761

Functions, catering and sponsorship  2,472  2,472  2029 2029

Car park revenue  1,000  1,000  990 990

Total  4,548  4,548  4,123  4,123

 
4  Gain / (Loss) on Disposal    

Proceeds from disposal of plant 
 and equipment  20 20 16 16

Less Written down value of assets  
disposed  (77) (77) (377) (377) 

Net gain / (loss) on disposal of plant and equipment (57) (57) (361) (361) 

5  Other Gains / (Losses)    

Net decrease in property, plant and equipment revaluation - - (4,507) (4,507)

  - - (4,507) (4,507)
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  2014 2014 2013 2013 
  Consolidated Parent Consolidated Parent 

  $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

6  Current Assets - Cash and Cash Equivalents    

Cash at bank and on hand  26,003 26,003 28,515 28,515

Cash at bank - Advance ticket sales  1,077 1,077 3,415 3,415

Treasury Corporation deposits  842 842 818 818

Total   27,922 27,922 32,748 32,748 

Cash at bank - advanced ticket sales relates to cash collected in advance for upcoming events and is quarantined from operating funds.

Cash at bank and on hand includes $23.9m unspent from the $26m funding received in prior years toward the redevelopment of Pirtek 
Stadium.    

 
7 Current Assets - Receivables    

Debtors  1,129 1,129 1,245 1,245

Less:Allowance for impairment  (8) (8) (435) (435)

Prepayments  162 162 172 172

GST receivable  - - 210 210

Accrued income  260 260 208 208

Other accounts receivable  339 364 81 106

     

Total Current Receivables  1,882 1,907 1,481 1,506 

 
Movement in the allowance for impairment    

Balance at start of period  (435) (435) (437) (437)

Amounts written off during the period  435 435 - -

Amounts recovered during the period  - - - -

Increase in allowance recognised in profit or loss  (8) (8) - -

Decrease in allowance recognised in profit or loss  - - 2 2

Balance at end of period  (8) (8) (435) (435)

 
8 Current Assets - Inventories     

Held for resale  91  91  77 77

 Consolidated Parent
  Land and Plant and  Land and  Plant and  
  Buildings Equipment Total Buildings Equipment Total

  $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

9  Non-Current Assets - Property, Plant and Equipment    

 
 At 1 July 2013- fair value

Gross carrying amount 336,983  20,600  357,583  336,983  20,600  357,583 

Accumulated depreciation and impairment (65,342) (7,896) (73,238) (65,342) (7,896) (73,238)

Net carrying amount 271,641  12,704  284,345  271,641  12,704  284,345 

 
At 30 June 2014- fair value

Gross carrying amount 340,129 20,580 360,709 340,129 20,580 360,709

Accumulated depreciation and impairment (73,992) (9,073) (83,065) (73,992) (9,073) (83,065)

Net carrying amount 266,137 11,507 277,644 266,137 11,507 277,644

 
Reconciliation 
Year ended 30 June 2014

A reconciliation of the carrying amount of each class of property, plant and equipment at the beginning and end of the current reporting period 
is set out below.

  Land and Plant and  Land and  Plant and  
  Buildings Equipment Total Buildings Equipment Total

  $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Net carrying amount at 1 July 2013 271,641 12,704 284,345 271,641 12,704 284,345

Additions 3,169 187 3,356 3,169 187 3,356

Disposals (17) (59) (76) (17) (59) (76)

Depreciation expense (8,682) (1,299) (9,981) (8,682) (1,299) (9,981)

Transfer 26 (26) - 26 (26) -

Net carrying amount at end of period 266,137 11,507 277,644 266,137 11,507 277,644

Further details regarding the fair value measurement of property, plant and equipment are disclosed in Note 10

 Consolidated Parent
  Land and Plant and  Land and  Plant and  
  Buildings Equipment Total Buildings Equipment Total

  $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

At 1 July 2012- fair value

Gross carrying amount 345,527 20,050 365,577 345,527 20,050 365,577

Accumulated depreciation and impairment (61,818) (6,410) (68,228) (61,818) (6,410) (68,228)

Net carrying amount 283,709 13,640 297,349 283,709 13,640 297,349

At 30 June 2013- fair value

Gross carrying amount 336,983  20,600  357,583  336,983  20,600  357,583 

Accumulated depreciation and impairment (65,342) (7,896) (73,238) (65,342) (7,896) (73,238)

Net carrying amount 271,641  12,704  284,345  271,641  12,704  284,345 
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Reconciliation 
Year ended 30 June 2013

A reconciliation of the carrying amount of each class of property, plant and equipment at the beginning and end of the current reporting period 
is set out below.

  Land and Plant and  Land and  Plant and  
  Buildings Equipment Total Buildings Equipment Total

  $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Net carrying amount at 1 July 2012 283,709 13,640 297,349 283,709 13,640 297,349

Additions 829 1,643 2,472 829 1,643 2,472

Disposals - (377) (377) - (377) (377)

Less revaluation decrements (4,507) - (4,507) (4,507) - (4,507)

Depreciation expense (8,992) (1,600) (10,592) (8,992) (1,600) (10,592)

Transfer 602 (602) - 602 (602) -

Net carrying amount at end of year 271,641 12,704 284,345 271,641 12,704 284,345

10 Fair value measurement of non-financial assets      
   

(a) Fair value hierarchy      
   

2014      
  Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total 
     fair value

  $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Property, plant and equipment (Note 9)     

Land and buildings  - 50,295 215,842 266,137

Plant and equipment   - - 7,819 7,819

  - 50,295 223,661 273,956

There were no transfers between Level 1 or 2 during the period.     
    

(b) Valuation techniques, inputs and process

The following table shows the valuation techniques used in measuring the fair value of property, plant and equipment for Level 2 fair values.  
     

Level 2 Land         
Valuation technique and inputs

Market value: Qualified valuers from Land and Property Information were engaged between December 2010 and April 2013 for each site 
to carry out the valuation of land. The values for the lands are determined by using market evidence based on the zoning and restrictions, 
condition, location and comparability of the asset. The valuers did not make significant adjustments to the land values. A range of sales 
evidence was used but a discount factor was not used to go from an unimpaired value (highest and best use) to an impaired value (existing 
use). Hence the most appropriate method to value land is via the Direct Comparison Approach, which is the “market approach”. In this 
approach the relative merits of the subject property and each of the sales are analysed and compared, having regard to matters such as 
zoning, location, aspect, topography, size of land, shape of land, size and current market sentiment. Ultimately valuers make a judgement 
call when comparing sales to the subject property. Sales evidence is considered as observable inputs. In the case of specialised assets such 
as Venues NSW lands, the valuers consider the current use of the land,. They also work on the basis the current use is in fact the highest and 
best use given there is no other feasible alternate use. In short, fair value is measured having regard to the highest and best use of an asset.

Fair value per square meter is in the range $33/sqm - $929/sqm (weighted average $94/sqm). Total area of land is 536,221 sqm.

The following table shows the valuation techniques used in measuring the fair value of property, plant and equipment, as well as the 
significant unobservable inputs used for Level 3 fair values

Level 3 Buildings

Valuation technique Significant unobservable inputs Sensitivity of the fair 
value measurement to 
changes in unobservable 
inputs

Depreciated replacement cost:

Qualified valuers from Land and Property Information 
were engaged between December 2010 and April 2013 
for each site to carry out the valuation of buildings.

Replacement cost of buildings and structures were 
based on gross floor areas and net lettable areas and 
the calculation of gross floor areas from drawings 
or site inspections. These areas and photographs 
of the buildings were used for the establishment of 
replacement costs. The replacement costs were used to 
establish the fair values of all buildings and arriving at 
the remaining useful life.

The completion of the replacement cost valuation also 
included reference to historical cost information to 
draw upon cost information provided by the Authority 
and the valuers’ own records of cost information used 
for the construction of some of the buildings. 

The methodology used in determining the replacement 
cost and depreciated replacement cost valuations:

1.  Using estimated cost of construction comprising 
site infrastructure, buildings and other specialist 
equipment.

2. Identify the age of the existing assets.

3.  Establish the remaining life for each asset.

4.  Calculate the depreciated replacement cost of these 
assets based on the current replacement cost and 
the economic life.

The replacement cost valuation takes account of the 
condition of the assets but does not represent the 
resale or market value of the assets.

Buildings:

Replacement cost per square metre for the following 
assets:

Asset and range (weighted average):

Hunter Stadium $51 - $2,919 ($1,090)

Newcastle Entertainment Centre $29 - $1,710 ($601)

Pirtek Stadium $1,772

WIN Stadium $2,037

WIN Entertainment Centre $1,976

Other inputs:

Weighted average remaining useful life: 

Hunter Stadium 62 years

Newcastle Entertainment Centre 17 years

Pirtek Stadium 31 years

WIN Stadium 32 years

WIN Entertainment Centre 29 years

Floor area:

Hunter Stadium 107,276 sqm

Newcastle Entertainment Centre 33,926 sqm

Pirtek Stadium 20,000 sqm

WIN Stadium 18,804 sqm

WIN Entertainment Centre 14,813 sqm

The estimated fair value 
would increase (decrease) 
if the replacement cost 
per square meter for 
the assets were higher 
(lower).

(c) Reconciliation of recurring Level 3 fair value measurements
2014    Plant and  Total Recurring 
   Buildings equipment Level 3 Fair value

   $’000 $’000 $’000

Fair value as at 1 July 2013   221,346 8,728 230,074

Additions   3,169 - 3,169

Transfers from Level 2    - - -

Transfers to Level 2   - - -

Disposals   (17) - (17)

Depreciation   (8,682) (883) (9,565)

Transfers    26 (26) -

Fair value as at 30 June 2014   215,842 7,819  223,661

VENUES NSW NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For the year ended 30 June 2014

CONTENTS   |   INDEX   | PAGE



VENUES NSW ANNUAL REPORT 2013-2014 Hunter Stadium | Newscastle Entertainment Centre & Showground | Pirtek Stadium | WIN Sports and Entertainment Centres46 47

11 Current / Non-Current Liabilities - Payables

2014 
Consolidated

$’000

2014 
Parent

$’000

2013 
Consolidated

$’000

2013 
Parent

$’000

Current

Creditors 170 170 265 265

Deposits held 1,048 1,048 2,552 2,552

Accrued expenses 1,120 1,120 1,161 1,161

Income in advance 1,678 1,678 2,989 2,989

Other payables 331 331 290 290

GST payable 5 5 - -

Total 4,352 4,352 7,257 7,257 

Non-Current

Income in advance 3,078 3,078 3,467 3,467 

Total 3,078 3,078 3,467 3,467 

12 Current / Non-Current Liabilities - Provisions

2014 
Consolidated

$’000

2014 
Parent

$’000

2013 
Consolidated

$’000

2013 
Parent

$’000

 
Current

Personnel services 781 781 756 756

Movements in provisions

Carrying amount at start of period 756 756 713 713

Additional provisions recognised 182 182 202 202

Amounts used (157) (157) (159) (159)

Carrying amount at end of period 781 781 756 756

Non-Current

Personnel services 52 52 127 127

Movements in provisions

Carrying amount at start of period 127 127 23 23

Additional provisions recognised - - 104 104

Amounts used (75) (75) - -

Carrying amount at end of period 52 52 127 127
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13 Commitments for Expenditure

2014 2014 2013 2013

$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

(a) Operating lease commitments

Future non-cancellable operating lease rentals not provided for and payable:

Not later than one year 8 8 13 13

Later than one year and not later than five years 14 14 13 13

Total (including GST) 22 22 26 26

(b) Capital expenditure commitments

Future capital expenditure not provided for and payable:

Not later than one year 247 247 967 967 

Later than one year and not later than five years - - 5 5

Total (including GST) 247 247 972 972 

14 Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Asseta

Venues NSW has received notice from NSW Public Works, the project manager for the WIN Stadium Western Grandstand project, of a claim 
for additional project management fees of $1,058,790, incurred as a result of delays in completing the project. While it is not considered that 
Venues NSW is liable for the expense, the matter is the subject of ongoing discussion and correspondence with NSW Public Works, the builder 
and Venues NSW, which at balance date had not been resolved.

The Members of the Board of Management are not aware of any significant or material contingent asset in existence at reporting date or which 
has emerged subsequent to reporting date which would materially impact on the financial position of Venues NSW.

15 Reconciliation of Cash Flows from Operating Activities to Net Result

2014 
Consolidated

2014 
Parent

2013 
Consolidated 

(12 months ended  
30 June 2013)

2013 
Parent 

(12 months ended  
30 June 2013)

$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Net cash used on operating activities (1,490) (1,490) 20,209 20,209

Depreciation (9,981) (9,981) (10,592) (10,592)

Allowance for impairment - - 2 2

Revaluation - - (4,507) (4,507)

Decrease (increase) in provisions 50 50 (315) (315)

Increase (decrease) in receivables 402 402 (1,907) (1,907)

Increase (decrease) in inventory 14 14 (175) (175)

Decrease (increase) in current payables 1,594 1,594 925 925

Decrease (increase) in income in advance 1,700 1,700 480 480

Net gain / (loss) on sale of plant and equipment (57) (57) (361) (361)

Net result (7,768) (7,768) 3,759 3,759
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16 Financial Instruments

The Authority’s principal financial instruments are outlined below. These financial instruments arise directly from the Authority’s operations 
or are required to finance its operations. The Authority does not enter into or trade financial instruments, including derivative financial 
instruments, for speculative purposes. 

The Authority’s main risks arising from financial instruments are outlined below, together with the Authority’s objectives, policies and 
processes for measuring  and managing risk. Further quantitative and qualitative disclosures are included throughout these financial 
statements.

The Board of Management with advice from the Audit and Risk Committee of Venues NSW has overall responsibility for the establishment and 
oversight of risk management and reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks. Risk management policies  are established to 
identify and analyse the risks faced by the Authority, to set risk limits and controls and to monitor risks.

(a) Financial instrument categories 

Financial Assets Note Category

Consolidated 
Carrying Amount

2014 
$’000

Parent 
Carrying Amount

2014 
$’000

Consolidated 
Carrying Amount

2013 
$’000

Parent 
Carrying Amount

2013 
$’000

Class

Cash and cash equivalents 6 N/A 27,922 27,922 32,748 32,748

Receivables (excludes 
statutory receivables  
and prepayments) 7

Loans and 
receivables (at 
amortised cost) 1,720 1,745 1,099 1,124

29,642 29,667 33,847 33,872 

Class

Payables (excludes 
statutory payables and 
unearned revenue) 11

Financial liabilities 
measured at 
amortised cost 2,669 2,669 4,268 4,268

2,669 2,669 4,268 4,268

(b) Credit risk

Credit risk arises when there is the possibility of the Authority’s debtors defaulting on their contractual obligations, resulting in a financial loss 
to the Authority. 

The maximum exposure to credit risk is generally represented by the carrying amount of the financial assets (net of any allowance for 
impairment). 

Credit risk arises from the financial assets of the Authority, including cash, and receivables. No collateral is held by the Authority. 

The Authority has not granted any financial guarantees.

Cash

Cash comprises cash on hand and bank balances. Interest is earned on daily bank balances at the monthly average adjusted by relevant banks 
and NSW Treasury Corporation.

VENUES NSW NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
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The table below summarises the fair market value sensitivity data for cash facility deposits

2014 2013

Sensitivity % 
2014

Balance Impact Sensitivity % 
2013

Balance Impact

Hour glass cash facility % $’000 $’000 % $’000 $’000

+/- 1 842 8 +/- 1  818 8

The Authority holds units in the following hour glass investment facility.

Facility Investments Investment Horizon

Hour Glass Cash Facility Cash, money market investments Up to 1.5 years

Hour glass cash investment facilities are unrated and are not guaranteed by the State.

The unit price of each facility is equal to the total fair value of the net assets held by the facility divided by the number of units on issue for the 
facility.

Unit prices are calculated and published daily.

As trustee, Tcorp has appointed external managers to manage the performance and risks of each facility in accordance with a mandate agreed 
by the parties.

Fair Value Hierarchy

Instrument Classification Basis for classification

Units in trust Level 2 Prices are observable, however, no active market exists for these facilities as they are 
only accessible to government agencies

(i) Receivables - trade debtors 

All trade debtors are recognised as amounts receivable at balance date. Collectibility of trade debtors is reviewed on an ongoing basis.

Procedures as established in the Treasurer’s Directions are followed to recover outstanding amounts, including letters of demand. 

Debts which are known to be uncollectible are written off. 

An allowance for impairment is raised when there is objective evidence that the Authority will not be able to collect all amounts due. 

This evidence includes past experience and current and expected changes in economic conditions.

The Authority is not materially exposed to concentrations of credit risk to a single trade debtor or group of debtors. 

Based on past experience, debtors that are not past due $617,920 (2013: $245,714) and less than 3 months past due $502,052 (2013: $426,175) 
are not considered impaired. 

Together these represent 99% (2013: 46%) of the total trade debtors. 

 $’000  $’000
  2014  2013
   Past due but Considered   Past due but Considered 
  Total not impaired impaired  Total not impaired impaired

Consolidated 
< 3 months overdue  502 502   426 426 

> 3 months overdue  10 2 8  573 138 435

 Total 512 504 8  999 564 435

  

Parent 
< 3 months overdue  502 502   426 426 

> 3 months overdue  10 2 8  573 138 435

 Total 512 504 8  999 564 435
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The ageing analysis excludes statutory receivables, as these are not within the scope of AASB7and excludes receivables that are not past due 
and not impaired. 

Therefore, the “total” will not reconcile to the receivables total recognised in the statement of financial position.

 
(ii) Receivables - other

The Authority has a receivable identified as Loan to Controlled Entity of $25,063, from the Newcastle International Sports Centre Club. 
 

(c) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Authority will be unable to meet its payment obligations when they fall due. 

The Authority continuously manages risk through monitoring future cash flows and maturities planning to ensure adequate holding of high 
quality liquid assets. 

The objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of loans and other advances.

During the current period, there were no defaults or breaches on any loans payable. No assets have been pledged as collateral. 

The Authority’s exposure to liquidity risk is deemed insignificant based on prior periods’ data and current assessment of risk. 

The liabilities are recognised for amounts due to be paid in the future for goods or services received, whether or not invoiced. 

Amounts owing to suppliers (which are unsecured) are settled in accordance with the policy set out in NSW TC 11/12.  

For small business suppliers, where terms are not specified, payment is made not later than 30 days from date of receipt of a correctly 
rendered invoice. 

For other suppliers,if trade terms are not specified, payment is made no later than the end of the month following the month in which an 
invoice or statement is received. 

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Authority’s financial liabilities, together with the interest rate exposure.

 
Maturity Analysis and Interest Rate Exposure of Financial Liabilities

2014  $’000 
  Interest Rate Exposure Maturity Dates 
 Weighted  
 Average   Fixed Variable  
 Effective Int. Nominal Interest Interest Non-interest 
 Rate Amount Rate Rate bearing < 1 yr 1-5 yrs > 5 yrs

Consolidated 
Total: 
Payables  2,669 - - 2,669 2,669 - -

  2,669 - - 2,669 2,669 - -

 
Parent 
Total: 
Payables  2,669 - - 2,669 2,669 - -

  2,669 - - 2,669 2,669 - -
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2013  $’000 
  Interest Rate Exposure Maturity Dates 
 Weighted  
 Average   Fixed Variable  
 Effective Int. Nominal Interest Interest Non-interest 
 Rate Amount Rate Rate bearing < 1 yr 1-5 yrs > 5 yrs

Consolidated

Total:

Payables  4,268 - - 4,268 4,268 - -

  4,268 - - 4,268 4,268 - -

Parent 
Total: 
Payables  4,268 - - 4,268 4,268 - -

  4,268 - - 4,268 4,268 - -

 

Notes: 

The amounts disclosed are the contractual undiscounted cash flows of each class of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the 
Authority can be required to pay.

(d) Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. 

The Authority’s exposures to market risk are primarily through interest rate risk on the Authority’s risks associated with the movement in the 
unit price of the Hour Glass Investment Facilities. The Authority has no exposure to foreign currency risk, and does not enter into commodity 
contracts.

Interest rate risk

Exposure to interest rate risk arises primarily through the Authority’s interest bearing liabilities. The Authority does not account for any fixed 
rate financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss or as available for sale. Therefore for these financial instruments, a change 
in interest rates would not affect profit or loss or equity. A reasonably possible change of +/- 1% is used, consistent with current trends in 
interest rates. The basis will be reviewed annually and amended where there is a structural change in the level of interest rate volatility. 

The Authority’s exposure to interest rate risk is set out below.  
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2014 $’000 
 Carrying -1% 1% 
 Amount Profit Equity Profit Equity

Consolidated

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents 27,922 (279) - 279 -

 27,922 (279) - 279 -

 
Parent

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents 27,922 (279) - 279 -

 27,922 (279) - 279 -

2013 $’000 
 Carrying -1% 1%
 Amount Profit Equity Profit Equity

Consolidated

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents 32,748 (327) - 327 -

 32,748 (327) - 327 -

 
Parent

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents 32,748 (327) - 327 -

 32,748 (327) - 327 -

 
(e) Fair value measurement

Financial instruments are generally recognised at cost. The amortised cost of financial instruments recognised in the statement of financial 
position approximates the fair value, because of the short term nature of many of the financial instruments.

17 Events after the Reporting Period

There has not arisen in the interval between the 30 June 2014 and the date of this report, any item, transaction or event of a material or 
unusual nature likely, in the opinion of the members of the Board of Management to affect significantly the operations of the Authority or the 
affairs of the Authority in the future financial years. 

On 1 July 2014, Venues NSW moved from the Department of Education and Communities cluster to the Department of Premier and Cabinet 
cluster.

End of audited financial statements

VENUES NSW NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For the year ended 30 June 2014

NEWCASTLE INTERNATIONAL SPORTS CENTRE 
CLUB INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

CONTENTS   |   INDEX   | PAGE



VENUES NSW ANNUAL REPORT 2013-2014 Hunter Stadium | Newscastle Entertainment Centre & Showground | Pirtek Stadium | WIN Sports and Entertainment Centres54 55

NEWCASTLE INTERNATIONAL  
SPORTS CENTRE CLUB  
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONT.)

STATEMENT BY MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF MANAGEMENT
For the year ended 30 June 2014

NEWCASTLE INTERNATIONAL SPORTS CENTRE CLUB 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 30 June 2014

STATEMENT BY MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF MANAGEMENT

Pursuant to Section 41C(1B) of the Public Finance and Audit Act 1983, we declare on behalf of Venues NSW that:

(i) In our opinion the financial statements of the Authority for the year ended 30 June 2014 have been prepared in accordance 
with applicable Australian Accounting Standards (which includes Australian Accounting interpretations ), the requirements 
of the Public Finance and Audit Act 1983 and the Public Finance and Audit Regulation 2010 and Treasurer’s Directions.

(ii) The financial statements exhibit a true and fair view of the financial position as at 30 June 2014 and the financial 
performance for the year.

(iii) We are not aware of any circumstances which would make any particulars in the financial statements misleading or inaccurate.

Chairperson Board Member

Date: Date:  19/9/2014 Date: Date:  19/9/2014
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NEWCASTLE INTERNATIONAL SPORTS CENTRE CLUB 
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the year ended 30 June 2014

Note

Year Ended 
30 June 2014

$

Year Ended 
30 June 2013

$

Revenue

Other income - -

Expenses

Administration expenses - -

Surplus/(Deficit) Before Income Tax for the Year  -  - 

Other Comprehensive Income - -

Total Comprehensive Income/(Expense) for the Year  -  - 

The above statement of profit and loss and other comprehensive income should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes

NEWCASTLE INTERNATIONAL SPORTS CENTRE CLUB 
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
As at 30 June 2014

Note

Year Ended 
30 June 2014

$

Year Ended 
30 June 2013

$

Current Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents  -  - 

Total Current Assets  -  - 

Total Assets  -  - 

Current Liabilities

Trade and other payables  -  - 

Total Current Liabilities  -  - 

Non Current Liabilities

Trade and other payables 2  25,063  25,063 

Total Non Current Liabilities  25,063  25,063 

Total Liabilities  25,063  25,063 

Net Liabilities  (25,063)  (25,063)

Equity

Accumulated Losses 3  (25,063)  (25,063)

Total Equity  (25,063)  (25,063)

The above statement of financial position should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes
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Retained  
Earnings

$

Total

$

Balance at 1 July 2012  (25,063)  (25,063)

Total Comprehensive Income for the year  -  - 

Balance at 30 June 2013  (25,063)  (25,063)

Total Comprehensive Income for the year  -  - 

Balance at 30 June 2014  (25,063)  (25,063)

The above statement of changes in equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes

NEWCASTLE INTERNATIONAL SPORTS CENTRE CLUB 
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
For the year ended 30 June 2014

NEWCASTLE INTERNATIONAL SPORTS CENTRE CLUB 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the year ended 30 June 2014

Note

Year Ended 
30 June 2014

$

Year Ended 
30 June 2013

$

Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Receipts from other income  -  - 

– Payments to administrative expenses

Net cash provided by operating activities 6  -  - 

Cash Flows from Financing Activities

Proceeds from borrowings  -  - 

– Repayment of borrowings

Net cash provided by (used) in financing activities  -  - 

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash Held  -  - 

Cash at beginning of the financial year  -  - 

Cash at End of the Financial Year 5  -  - 

The above statement of changes in equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Preparation

The Financial Statements are a general purpose financial report which have been prepared in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards, 
Australian Accounting Interpretations, the provisions of the Finance and Audit Act 1983, the Public Finance and Audit Regulation 2010 and the 
Treasurer’s directions.

The financial statements have been prepared under the accrual basis of accounting. Except for certain assets which, as noted, are at valuation, the 
accounts are prepared in accordance with the historical cost convention, modified where applicable by the measurement at fair value of selected 
non-current assets and financial liabilities. The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous year.

The Newcastle International Sports Centre Club (Club) is a subsidiary of Venues NSW. 

The Club, in complying with the requirements of the Public Finance and Audit Act 1983, has kept proper accounts and records of its operations.

The financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2014 has been authorised for issue by the Board Members of Venues NSW on  19/9/2014.
Venues NSW provides administrative services, including the preparation of financial services for the Club. Due to the inconsequential nature of 
those services, their value can not be calculated with any certainty and no charge is made to the entity for them. Venues NSW also pays audit fees 
which include the audit of the Club’s financial statements. The fee charged for the audit of the Club’s financial statements is not separable from 
the Venues NSW audit fees.

(a) Income Tax
The Club is exempt of income tax under the Income Tax Assessment Act 1997.

(b) Cash
For the purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows, cash includes deposits at call which are readily convertible to cash on hand and which are 
used in the cash management function on a day-to-day basis.

(c) Revenue
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised upon delivery of goods to customers.
Revenue from the rendering of a service is recognised upon the delivery of the service to the customers.

(d) Assets
The Club holds 15 poker machine entitlements but as there is no active market, they are recorded in the accounts at acquisition cost.  
They were obtained at no consideration, so the acquisition cost is nil. 

(e) Trade & Other Creditors
Liabilities are recognised for amounts to be paid in the future for goods and services received, whether or not billed to the Club.  
These amounts are unsecured and are usually settled within 30 days.

(f) Going Concern
The operations of the Newcastle International Sports Centre Club ceased trading on 12 December 2008 due to the demolition of the Western 
Grandstand at Hunter Stadium. At the date of this report no decision has been made as to whether the Club will commence trading again in 
the future.
Venues NSW has agreed to provide financial support to the Club until a decision is made as to its future.

(g) Financial Instruments

Recognition and Initial Measurement 
Financial instruments, incorporating financial assets and financial liabilities, are recognised on trade-date - the date when the Club commits 
to purchase or sell the assets. Trade date accounting is adopted for financial assets that are delivered within timeframes established by 
marketplace convention.
Financial instruments are initially measured at fair value plus transactions costs where the instrument is not classified as at fair value 
through profit or loss. Transaction costs related to instruments classified as at fair value through profit or loss are expensed to profit or loss 
immediately. Financial instruments are classified and measured as set out below.

Derecognition
Financial assets are derecognised where the contractual rights to receipt of cash flows expires or the asset is transferred to another party 
whereby the Club no longer has any significant continuing involvement in the risks and benefits associated with the asset. Financial liabilities 
are derecognised where the related obligations are either discharged, cancelled or expire. The difference between the carrying value of the 
financial liability extinguished or transferred to another party and the fair value of consideration paid, including the transfer of non-cash 
assets or liabilities assumed is recognised in profit or loss.

NEWCASTLE INTERNATIONAL SPORTS CENTRE CLUB 
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 30 June 2014

Classification and Subsequent Measurement

(i) Financial liabilities 
Non-derivative financial liabilities (excluding financial guarantees) are subsequently measured at amortised cost.  When a financial liability is 
recognised, initially it is measured at fair value net of transaction costs.

Fair Value
Financial instruments are subsequently measured at fair value, which represents the amount for which a libility could be settled, between 
knowledgeable, willing parties. 

Impairment
At each reporting date, the Club assesses whether there is objective evidence that a financial instrument has been impaired.  In the case 
of available-for-sale financial instruments, a prolonged decline in the value of the instrument is considered to determine whether an 
impairment has arisen.  Impairment losses are recognised in the income statement.

(h) New Australian Accounting Standards issued but not effective    
At reporting date a number of accounting standards adopted by the AASB has been issued but are not yet operative. These new Standards/
Interpretations have not been early adopted by the Club. 
Notwithstanding this, it is considered that the implemenation of these Standards would not have had any material impact on the Club’s 
financial statements.

30 June 2014 30 June 2013

$ $

 
2.    Non Current Liabilities - Trade and other payables

Loans from Related Entity  25,063  25,063 

3.    Accumulated Losses

Accumulated Losses at the beginning of the financial year (25,063)  (25,063)

Profit/(loss) for the year  -   -  

Accumulated Losses at the end of the financial year (25,063)  (25,063)

4. Financial Risk Management
 
a. Financial Risk Management Policies

The Club’s financial instruments have consisted mainly of deposits with banks, payables and loans from related entities. The Club is now a 
dormant entity and the only remaining financial instrument at year end is a loan from a related entity. 

The Club does not have any derivative instruments at 30 June 2014.

  Financial Risk Exposures and Management
The Club’s overall risk management strategy seeks to assist the Club in meeting its financial targets, while minimising potential adverse 
effects on financial performance. The Club operates under board approved policies which include review of credit risk policies and any 
future cash flow requirements.

The Club does not have any exposure to interest rate risk, liquidity risk and credit risk.

  Interest rate risk
The Club does not have any exposure to interest rate risk as the only liability is an interest free loan from a related entity.

  Liquidity risk
The Club does not have any exposure to liquidity risk at present as it is a dormant entity, with the only liability being to a related entity. 
This related entity has agreed to provide financial support to the Club until a decision is made as to its future.

  Credit risk
The Club does not have any exposure to credit risk at present as it is a dormant entity, with the only liability being an interest free loan 
from a related entity.
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b. Financial Instruments Composition and Maturity Analysis 
The table below reflects the undiscounted contractual settlement terms for financial instruments of a fixed period of maturity, as well as 
management’s expectations of the settlement period for all other financial instruments. As such the amounts may not reconcile to the 
statement of financial position.

Within 
 0-3 months

$

Within  
3-6 months

$

6 to 12 months

$

1 to 5 years

$

Total Contractual 
Cashflows

$

Carrying amount 
of liabilities

$

 
30 June 2014

Financial Liabilities

Loans from Related Entities  -  -  -  25,063  25,063  25,063 

Total contractual cashflows  -  -  -  25,063  25,063  25,063 

30 June 2013

Financial Liabilities

Loans from Related Entities  -  -  -  25,063  25,063  25,063 

Total contractual cashflows  -  -  -  25,063  25,063  25,063 

c. Sensitivity Analysis

Interest Rate Risk and Market Risk:

The Club has not performed a sensitivity analysis relating to its exposure to interest rate risk and market risk at balance date due to the 
lack of exposure to these types of risk.

30 June 2014 30 June 2013

$ $

5.  Cash Flow Information

For the purpose of the Statement of Cash Flows, cash includes:

Deposits at call which are readily convertible to cash on hand and which are used in the cash 
management function on a day-to-day basis. Cash at the end of the year is shown in the 
Statement of Financial Position as:

Cash and cash equivalents – –

6. R econciliation of Net Cash provided by Operating Activities to Operating Result

Surplus/(deficit) for the year – –

 
Changes in operating assets and liabilities : 
Increase/(decrease) in sundry creditors – –

Net cash provided by operating activities – –

7.  Subsequent Events
There were no events subsequent to year end which would have a material effect on the financial position of the Club.

End of audited financial statements
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APPENDIX 1
HUMAN RESOURCES
Venues NSW staff were employed through the Office of Communities during the period. As at June 2014, there were 26 non-casual staff (24.7 FTE) 
and 50 casual staff (17.8 FTE). The 50 casual staff are employed as required as event staff at WIN Sports and Entertainment Centres.

Newcastle Entertainment Centre is managed for Venues NSW by AEG Ogden. Staff at Newcastle Entertainment Centre are employees of AEG Ogden.

Venues NSW has contracts with organisations to provide event services such as security, cleaning and customer service. Staff providing these 
services are employed by the contracted organisations.

EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY
Venues NSW is committed to the implementation of government Equal Employment Opportunity (EEO) Policy, and observes EEO principles in its 
recruitment of staff, workplace practices and development of training programs.

The following tables provide statistical EEO information on Venues NSW non-casual Workforce.

EEO ACTUAL STAFF NUMBERS

Remuneration Level of 
Substantive Position

2012-13 2013-14

Men Women Men Women

$0 – $41,679 2 0 2 1

$41,679 – $54,724 2 6 1 4

$54,742 – $61,198 0 2 0 2

$61,198 – $77,441 3 2 3 2

$77,441 – $100,145 2 0 0 1

$100,145 – $125,181 1 1 3 2

> $125,181 4 1 4 1

Total 14 12 13 13

 

TRENDS IN THE REPRESENTATION OF EEO GROUPS

EEO Group Benchmark/Target 2012-13 2013-14

Women 50.0% 46.2% 50.0%

Aboriginal people and Torres Strait Islanders 2.6% 0.0% 3.85%

People whose First Language Spoken as a Child was not English 19.0% 11.5% 7.69%

People with a Disability n/a 0.0% 0.0%

People with a Disability Requiring Work Related Adjustment 1.5% 0.0% 0.0%

 

NUMBER OF EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

2012/2013 2013/14

Male Female Male Female

No. of Executive Officers with remuneration 
equal to SES Level 1 to SES Level 4 - 1 1 1

No. of Executive Officers with remuneration 
equal to or exceeding equivalent of SES Level 5 - - - -

 
APPENDIX 2
MULTICULTURAL POLICY
All government agencies are required to have a multicultural plan and include information about the plan in their annual reports. The Community 
Relations Commission and Principles of Multiculturalism Act 2000 sets out the principles for multiculturalism that NSW government agencies 
must observe.

Venues NSW is committed to ensuring an equitable access to services and facilities as well as recognising the values of a culturally diverse 
society. Venues NSW is committed to the principles of multiculturalism and reviews its practices in terms of leadership, social justice and 
community harmony, cultural diversity, access, equity and economic opportunity.
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APPENDIX 7
AUDIT AND RISK  
Risk Management

In line with the Treasury Policy paper TPP 09-05 and Treasury Circular TC 09-08, Venues NSW operated an Audit and Risk Committee under an 
approved shared arrangement with the Department of Education and Communities in 2013-14. 

During the year the Audit and Risk Committee has overseen, monitored and reported on Venues NSW Governance, Risk and Control Issues 
affecting its operations to achieve a level of assurance equivalent to the requirements of the policy.

Key elements of the Venues NSW audit and risk management framework in place during 2013-14 included:

 » an Audit and Risk Committee with an independent chair and independent members to oversee the internal audit program for Venues NSW and 
monitor issues arising from internal and external audit recommendations

 » maintenance of a Venues NSW Risk Register which the Board reviews regularly

In accordance with the internal audit plan Deloitte conducted the following internal audit of Venues NSW operations:

 » Review of Operations and Business Model

Audit and Risk Committee

For the period, the Venues NSW Audit and Risk Committee discussed audit and risk matters at its meetings held in July, August, September and 
December 2013 and February and May 2014.

Insurance

Venues NSW manages insurable risk by insurance provided as part of the NSW Treasury Managed Fund (TMF).

TMF is a government-wide self-insurance scheme that provides a systematic and coordinated approach to risk management. Under this scheme 
benchmarking is used to gauge risk management with premiums set by a combination of benchmarks and claims experience.

Venues NSW has full workers’ compensation, motor vehicle, property, liability and miscellaneous cover provided by TMF. 

Staff at the Newcastle Entertainment Centre and Showground are employees of AEG Ogden and are covered under a separate workers’ 
compensation policy.

 

APPENDIX 3
WORKPLACE HEALTH AND SAFETY
Venues NSW is committed to protecting the health, safety and welfare of all staff, contractors, clients and visitors in the workplace. This is 
achieved through workplace consultation and integrating best practice occupational systems and processes into all aspects of our planning and 
operations.

To ensure a systematic and integrated approach to health, safety and welfare across the Department of Education and Communities (DEC), work 
continued with the implementation of DEC work health and safety policies, procedures and practices in accordance with the WHS Act 2011 and 
associated Regulations.  A significant initiative included the roll out of a work health and safety consultation framework for the establishment of 
effective mechanisms of consultation on health and safety matters at each workplace.  Issue resolution procedures were also implemented to 
provide a support structure to facilitate the resolution of work, health and safety issues that arise in the workplace. Both initiatives are integral to 
achieving a high standard of safety across all DEC workplaces.  

The WIN Sports & Entertainment Centres operates a WHS Open Forum as the principal means of consulting with the workplace. The forum meets 
monthly with all employees, contractors and tenants of the site invited to discuss safety concerns and suggest initiatives to improve workplace 
health and safety across the entire site.

Venues NSW had the following workplace accidents and/or injuries during the reporting period:

WORKPLACE HEALTH & SAFETY ACCIDENTS/INJURIES

2012-13 2013-14

Reported workplace accidents 3 0

Lost time injuries 3 0

APPENDIX 4
LEGAL CHANGE
A five year statutory review of the Sporting Venues Authorities Act 2008 commenced during the period. 

In accordance with the provisions of the Act, the review will determine whether:

 » the policy objectives of the Act remain valid; and 

 » the terms of the Act remain appropriate for achieving those objectives.

The Sporting Venues Authorities Regulation 2008 which supports the Act is due for repeal or remaking by 1 September 2014.

APPENDIX 5
PRIVACY
The Privacy and Personal Information Protection Act 1998 provides standards for the NSW public sector in regulating the management of personal 
information. The standards are supported by 12 information protection principles covering the collection, storage, use and disclosure of, and 
access and alteration of personal information.

During 2013-14, no complaints were received by Venues NSW alleging a breach of privacy.

APPENDIX 6
GOVERNMENT INFORMATION (PUBLIC ACCESS)
Venues NSW received no access to information applications in the reporting period.
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APPENDIX 8
CUSTOMER FEEDBACK
Venues NSW is committed to ensuring that it provides facilities and services that meet the needs and expectations of individuals and community 
groups who visit our venues each year.

Local Venues Councils operate in the Hunter, Western Sydney and Illawarra to provide advice to the Board and ensure that local communities 
continue to be closely involved in the way our venues operate.

We also encourage the community to provide feedback through our online channels. Each venue is contactable through its website, email address 
and social media accounts such as Twitter and Facebook.

APPENDIX 9
WASTE REDUCTION AND PURCHASING POLICY
The NSW Government’s Waste Reduction and Purchasing Policy (WRAPP) requires NSW Government agencies to develop and implement a WRAPP 
plan to reduce waste in four areas:

 » paper products

 » office equipment and components

 » vegetation material

 » construction and demolition material

It also requires that priority be given to buying materials with recycled content where they are cost and performance competitive.

Venues NSW is committed to reducing waste in accordance with the WRAPP Policy. The agency is committed to reducing general waste and  
re-using or recycling material wherever possible.

One initiative implemented in the period saw the WIN Sports and Entertainment Centres partner with Green Connect who specialise in reclaiming 
compostable and recyclable waste streams generated by events.  During the NRL and Charity Shield matches at WIN Stadium results have 
achieved better than 85% diversion from landfill over previous waste management practices at major events.

APPENDIX 10 
EXPENDITURE ON CONSULTANTS

Consultants Project Amount

Consultants costing $50,000 or more - -

Consultants costing less than $50,000 2 Projects $20,413.83
 

ATTESTATION STATEMENT
Internal Audit and Risk Management Policy Compliance

Internal Audit and Risk Management Attestation
For the 2013-2014 Financial Year

For the Venues NSW

The Board of Venues NSW is of the opinion that the Venues NSW has internal audit and risk 
management processes in place that are, in all material respects, compliant with the core
requirements set out in Treasury Circular NSW TC 09/08 Internal Audit and Risk Management 
Policy. These processes provide a level of assurance that enables the senior management of 
Venues NSW to understand, manage and satisfactorily control risk exposures.

The Board of Venues NSW is of the opinion that the Audit and Risk Committee is constituted and 
operates in accordance with the independence and governance requirements of Treasury Circular 
NSW TC 09/08.

The Chair and Members of the Audit and Risk Committee are:

 Jim Mitchell - Independent Chair (3 years from 2 February 2014)
 Garry Dinnie - Independent Member 1 (8 years from 1 July 2009)
 Christine Feldmanis – Independent Member 2 (6 years from 1 April 2010)

 Carolyn Burlew – Independent Chair (1 February 2010 – 1 February 2014)
 David Roden – Independent Member (6 December 2011 – 31 October 2013)

This Audit and Risk Committee has been established under a Treasury approved shared 
arrangement with the following department:

 Department of Education and Communities 

In accordance with the resolution of the Governing Board of Venues NSW

John Quayle
Chair, Venues NSW
12 September 2014

Venues NSW Contact Officer:

Janett Milligan
Executive Director, Venues NSW
Phone - (02) 9006 3706
Fax - (02) 9006 3884
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APPENDIX 15

VENUES NSW SENIOR MANAGEMENT
Luke Coleman 
Acting Chief Operating Officer 
Director, Pirtek Stadium, Parramatta

Luke Coleman has been the Director of Parramatta Stadium since February 2006. Prior to this appointment he held 
executive positions in the event, entertainment and music industries in Australia and the UK.

Luke has extensive experience in negotiating hire agreements with all sports codes and in 2012 was instrumental in 
securing the Western Sydney Wanderers FC as tenants at the Stadium.  Luke is currently acting in the role of Chief 
Operating Officer for Venues NSW managing the commercial and operational arrangements in the venues. He is also 
overseeing Venues NSW major projects, including the upgrade of Pirtek Stadium. 

Stuart Barnes CFE 
General Manager, WIN Sports and Entertainment Centres, Wollongong

Stuart Barnes is the General Manager of the WIN Sports and Entertainment Centres in Wollongong having overseen the 
establishment of the venues and their operational set-up in 1998. Since that time he has also overseen the construction 
of the WIN Stadium Northern Grandstand (opened in 2002) and the Western Grandstand (opened in 2012).

Stuart’s recent and current professional and community involvement includes membership of the Boards of the Illawarra 
Business Chamber, Tourism Wollongong, Wollongong City Employment and Training (as Chair, the Venue Managers 
Association of Australasia and St Mary’s Star of the Sea College (where he is currently Deputy Chair). 

Stuart is a Certified Facilities Executive and his qualifications include Diplomas in Education and Public Sector 
Management and he is currently studying for a Graduate Diploma in Public Administration.

Bicci Henderson 
General Manager, Hunter Stadium, Newcastle

Bicci Henderson is the General Manager of Hunter Venues. He is a veteran of the entertainment and event industry with 
over 31 years’ experience working with some of the world’s top musicians and actors in Australia and overseas.  Bicci’s 
experience encompasses artist management, concert touring, producing records and theatre shows, managing theatres, 
producing corporate events, contract negotiations and more recently running football stadiums.

Prior to his role at Venues NSW Bicci was the General Manager of Entertainment at Sydney’s Star City Casino. He is a 
member of the Venue Management Association (VMA) and Live Performance Australia.  

Milton O’Brien CFE 
Acting General Manager, Pirtek Stadium, Parramatta

Milton O’Brien is the Acting General Manager of Pirtek Stadium. He has an extensive background in Venue Management 
in Australia and Internationally. His industry experience includes marketing, business development and major event 
management including the World Indoor Athletics Championship in 2010 and the Asian Cup of Football in 2011.

Milton is a Certified Facilities Executive,  He is a graduate of the Venue Management School and holds qualifications in 
event management. 

Chris Blanch 
General Manager, Newcastle Entertainment Centre and Showground

Chris Blanch is the General Manager of the AEG Ogden managed Newcastle Entertainment Centre and Showground. 
Chris is a qualified accountant with a Bachelor of Commerce degree and had an extensive career in public accounting 
prior to facility management.

In 1997 Chris joined the Newcastle Entertainment Centre as Assistant Accountant progressing soon after to Business 
Manager. Following a restructure in 2000, Chris was appointed Centre Manager and advanced to General Manager in 
2002. Chris is a graduate of the Venue Management School.

APPENDIX 11
PAYMENT OF ACCOUNTS

Outstanding invoices by timeframe at the end of each quarter

Quarter Current 30-60 60-90 <90 Total

Sep-13 270,344 4,276 19,668 0 294,288 

Dec-13 317,142 42,518 2,121 26590 388,371 

Mar-14 870,479 100 5,483 222 876,284 

Jun-14 290,944 17,963 71 - 308,978 

 
Accounts paid on time at the end of each quarter

Quarter Target Actual  % Total Accounts  
paid on time $

Total amount  
paid $

Sep-13 100% 90% 2,606,749 2,896,388 

Dec-13 100% 85% 2,986,665 3,513,724 

Mar-14 100% 99% 3,307,414 3,340,822 

Jun-14 100% 98% 5,097,408 5,201,437 

 
Venue NSW aims to pay 100% of accounts on time. Delays in processing accounts arose due to queries in relation to goods received and invoices. 
No interest was paid on overdue amounts.

APPENDIX 12
ANNUAL REPORT AVAILABILITY AND PRODUCTION COST
The Venues NSW 2013-14 Annual Report is available in electronic format and can be downloaded from Venues NSW website at www.venuesnsw.com

The Annual Report was produced at a cost of $7,500.

APPENDIX 13
CREDIT CARD USE
The Executive Director certifies that the credit card use in Venues NSW has been conducted in accordance with relevant Premier’s Memoranda and 
Treasury guidelines. There were no irregularities during the reporting period.

APPENDIX 14
INVESTMENT PERFORMANCE
Funds were invested in the Treasury Corporation Hour Glass Cash Facility and at Bank Term Deposits. The annual return on the cash facility and 
term deposits were 2.92% and 3.75% respectively.
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APPENDIX 16 – LOCAL VENUES COUNCILS:  
MEETING DATES AND PROFILES OF MEMBERS
HUNTER – LOCAL VENUES COUNCIL
During 2013-14, the Hunter Local Venues Council met eight times on the following dates:

12 July 2013

12 August 2013

9 September 2013

25 November 2013

10 March 2014

14 April 2014

19 May 2014

14 June 2014

Council members are:

Glenn Turner – Chair

Glenn was the Chair of the former Hunter Region Sporting Venues Authority. He has experience as Chair and CEO in many industries including as 
Chair of Hunter Water and the Hunter Medical Research Institute Foundation.

Catherine Tate

Catherine was a member of the former Hunter Region Sporting Venues Authority. She has also been a supporter and/or patron of many sporting 
groups in the Hunter including Newcastle Netball, Wests Netball, Newcastle Rowing, Newcastle District Women’s Bowling Association and Hunter 
Surf Life Saving. Catherine is currently a member of the Hunter Academy of Sport Board and Chair of the Mater’s Community Advisory Council. 
Catherine has also been active with a number of charities including the Salvation Army, Lifeline and Samaritans. Professionally she has been a 
TAFE communication teacher.

Keith Lynch

Keith was a member of the former Hunter Region Sporting Venues Authority. He has also held senior executive positions in engineering and 
shipbuilding in the Hunter region and has recently retired as the chair of NIB Holdings Limited. He previously held positions as chair of Kip 
McGrath Education Centres Ltd and deputy chair of Newcastle Grammar School Ltd. Keith is currently chair of the not-for-profit charitable 
organisation, nib Foundation.

Martene Archer

Martene has over 20 years’ experience in the energy and health sectors and has recently joined the higher education landscape at the University 
of Newcastle focusing on governance, legal, risk and compliance. Martene has previously held roles responsible for managing business and 
community partnerships across the Hunter region including sponsorships with the Newcastle Knights and (now) Hunter Stadium and has 
facilitated network infrastructure development for facilities within the stadium precinct, particularly expansion of the Newcastle Hockey Club.

(Edward) Leigh Maughan

Edward Leigh Maughan is the Executive Marketing Manager for the Hunter Prostate Cancer Alliance. Leigh is a Lifetime Member of the Newcastle 
Knights Rugby League Club and a former director of the Newcastle Knights Member Club Limited. Leigh has held positions in television and radio 
as a sports broadcaster and currently resides in the Newcastle area.  Leigh is the former Honorary Secretary of the Hunter International Sport 
Centre Trust.

ILLAWARRA – LOCAL VENUES COUNCIL
During 2013-14, the Illawarra Local Venues Council met five times on the following dates:

7 August 2013

2 October 2013

4 December 2013

5 February 2014

7 May 2014

Council members are:

Vicki Tiegs – Chair

Vicki was a member of the former Illawarra Venues Authority and Wollongong Sportsground Trust. She has held sport and tourism positions 
including Director and Life Member of Tourism Wollongong and Director of the Illawarra Academy of Sport. Vicki has also worked closely with 
the National Breast Cancer Foundation, Legacy, Farmhand and the Australian Red Cross. She is currently a partner in Waples Marketing Group, 
Bluejuice Events and the Grants and Funding Institute and is former media executive with a background in marketing.

Wayne Morris

Wayne is the Secretary of the Churches of Christ NSW Property Trust. He was previously the Chief Executive Officer of IMB Limited from 1999 – 
2007 and Wollongong Hawks Basketball Ltd from 2009 - 2011. He was formerly a Director of ABACUS Australian Mutuals, Chair of the Australian 
Association of Permanent Building Societies and a member of the National Basketball League Commission. He is currently a Director of the 
Illawarra Performing Arts Centre (Merrigong Theatre Co), City of Innovation Limited (t/as Destination Wollongong) and Chair of the Wollongong 
Symphony Orchestra Foundation Ltd.

Craig Osborne

Craig is a Managing Partner at RMB Lawyers. He has also been the Chairman of the Wollongong Wolves Football Club, a board member of Lifeline 
South Coast and an ambassador to the Port Kembla Revitalisation Project. Craig has also been involved with a number of charities serving as 
the Chair of the Illawarra Health Services Palliative Care Appeal and the Chair of the Illawarra Area Health Service Golden Hour Appeal. Craig 
currently sits on the Regional Development Australia - Illawarra Board and the Illawarra Grammar School Foundation. He also currently heads 
Football South Coast’s General Purposes Tribunal. Craig was Illawarra Business Chamber’s Business Person of the Year in 2007 and 2009.

Glenda Papac

Glenda has been the practice manager at Tony Papac & Associates since 1994. She also serves as the Director of Illawarra Women in Business 
(from 2007), a Director of Horizon Credit Union (from 2010) a member of the Illawarra Salvation Army Advisory Board Illawarra (from 2008) and 
also the Alumni Relations Co-coordinator & Events Manager at Edmund Rice College, Wollongong (from 2011).

Arun Jagatramka (to March 2014)

Arun is the Chairman and Managing Director of Gujarat NRE Coke Limited. He was formerly on the board of Gujarat NRE Coking Coal Ltd which 
owned and operated two prime hard coking coal mines in Wollongong. He held a number of board positions including Port Kembla Coal Terminal 
and the Wollongong NRE Hawks. Arun was Illawarra Person of the Year in 2009.
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WESTERN SYDNEY – LOCAL VENUES COUNCIL
During 2013-14, the Western Sydney Local Venues Council met six times on the following dates:

4 July 2013

9 October 2013

27 November 2013

6 February 2014

6 March 2014

3 April 2014

Council members are:

Craig Gallagher - Chair

Craig is the former chair of the Parramatta Stadium Trust and was trustee of the State Sports Centre Trust, serving as Chair of the finance and 
audit committee for both trusts. Craig is a partner at Hunt & Hunt Lawyers and practices in the property, estate planning, commercial law and 
commercial litigation areas. Craig is a member of Epping Rotary, Director of Bendigo Community Bank North Epping and a Director of the Centre 
for Disability Studies at Sydney University.

Mark Birkinshaw

Mark is a Director of Transport Ideas, a Sydney based professional services consultancy practice. Mark has more than 25 years’ experience in 
passenger transport and freight logistics across government and private sector organisations. Mark’s career covers national and international 
experience in business development, commercialisation, innovation and consulting. Mark is a NSW Chairman and a current Fellow of the 
Chartered Institute of Logistics and Transport Australia. Mark is also an Executive Member of the Ethnic Communities Council of NSW.

Ern Phang

Ern is a lawyer with Phang Legal, a Parramatta law firm and practices mainly in property law and business law. Ern is also an experienced 
Director and Company Secretary having served on the boards of not for profit organisations in Sydney and Melbourne.  Ern is a past recipient of the 
Sydney Mid West Volunteer of the Year Award and Law Society President’s Award for his work within the local community. Ern brings his passion 
for people and Western Sydney, as well as his legal expertise and commercial acumen to the role on the Western Sydney Local Venues Council.

Karen Grega

Being the CEO of Sydney Olympic Park Business Association, Karen has worked with major Park venues and local businesses. Her sporting 
experience includes CEO of the inaugural Maccabi Australia International Games, commercial management roles with the International Cricket 
Council and Scottish Premier League Club, Dunfermline Athletic FC, Acting Media Manager with Sydney FC in the A-League, General Manager 
roles with the Sydney Cricket and Sports Ground Trust. Karen has a Bachelor of Business Communications degree and is a former lecturer at the 
VMA Venue Management School.

Jim Taggart

Jim has a Masters Degree in Commerce, a Diploma of Teaching, a Bachelor and a Masters degree in Arts and a Doctorate in Business 
Administration. Jim has lived in the Hills District for more than 32 years and has been actively involved in a wide range of community activities 
including the Salvation Army’s Red Shield Appeal. He was the Vice President of the Regional Chamber of Commerce 1999 – 2000 and is a past 
board member of Gilroy and Marion Colleges. He is a past Chair and current member of the Sydney Hills Business Chamber.
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